
Solutions-Driven

P o w e l l  I n d u s t r I e s 
2 0 1 2  A n n u A l  R e p o R t



Value Quest

After 65 years of growth and innovation, Powell remains a 
market leader.

We have consistently added improvements to satisfy customer 
needs — whether that meant increasing engineering capability, 
streamlining product packaging or expanding our global 
presence. We have harnessed emerging technologies, helping 
customers improve safety and product performance, beyond and 
ahead of industry demands.

Today we have a diverse and integrated business, with the 
engineering expertise and manufacturing systems to deliver the 
world’s most challenging power distribution solutions.

In a complex world, we have come of age. 

Prepared for challenges. Seeking innovation. Driving solutions. 
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Powell closes 

this year 

in a good 

position, 

with great 

optimism for 

the future. 

In two of our 

key markets — oil and gas and light rail 

transportation — activity remains strong, 

which provided solid revenues for this year 

and a respectable backlog. 

The utilities market remains slow. However, 

after 65 years, we realize that we operate 

in a highly cyclical environment. As the 

outlook for the future becomes clearer, and 

the global demand for energy continues to 

increase, we are confident that we will see 

an increase in utility investment. Our history 

affirms this pattern time and time again. 

Powell’s mission has always been to be 

the right company at the right time. 

To prepare for the future, and to continue 

to improve our performance for our 

customers, Powell made several strategic 

moves in 2012.

We have acquired three tracts of land to 

support future growth. We allowed for 

expansion of our facility on the 

Houston Ship Channel. We are adding 

a new facility to replace existing leased 

facilities and provide opportunity for 

growth in Houston, Texas, and we are 

making extensive investment to the 

operations in Edmonton, Alberta, in 

order to support the important and 

high-growth Canadian market. Each of 

these investments, funded by cash from 

operations and cash on hand, stem from 

our desire to consolidate a wide range of 

engineering, packaging and consultative 

services in a more integrated and 

streamlined fashion.

A more comprehensive approach reduces 

customer risk and expedites delivery on 

the large-scale projects that have always 

been Powell’s specialty. 

Going forward, combining the best of 

the past and the future

Powell continues on the path that we 

began in 1947. We focus on large, complex 

and critical electrical power distribution 

projects that operate safely and reliably. 

We strive to deliver this complex 

equipment predictably. 

We rely on our talented and dedicated 

people to bring the Powell vision to 

life, and that has not changed. Our 

expertise in our markets brings great 

value to customers, made clearer by the 

minimal layers between our talent and our 

customers. We have developed long-

lasting customer relationships based on 

our collaborative model.

I am very pleased to announce that in 

August we ended an extensive executive 

search with Mike Lucas joining Powell as 

President and CEO to lead our company 

and our people. I have enjoyed the 

challenges and rewards of working with 

a great group of employees from top to 

bottom, and at this point I end my time 

serving as interim President and CEO and 

return to the position of non-executive 

Chairman of the Board. 

Rest assured, Mike’s 27 years of 

professional sales, operational and general 

management experience will add great 

value to our organization. 

In addition to his professional 

qualifications, I believe that Mike Lucas 

personally aligns with the Powell customer-

centric business culture, and I am certain 

that he will maintain the commitment of 

listening to our customers and helping 

them to meet their challenges.

I look forward to the next generation.

Thomas W. Powell 

Chairman of the Board
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The GrowinG  
DemanD for 

As the world continues to develop, the need for infrastructure 
investment in power, water and other critical processes 

intensifies. At the same time, infrastructure in more developed 
regions of the world continues to age and require replacement. 
Powell has been involved in infrastructure construction for more 

than 65 years. Our range of services begins in design and 
continues through retrofits and maintenance. 

infrastructure
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Improvement is continuous at Powell. In the recent past, we 
have made significant upgrades within our own business — 
in our enterprise software, project management systems and 
our business processes — to improve both customer service 
and our product performance.

infrastructureSTreamlininG anD  
inveSTinG in our BuSineSS 
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Powell has made it our business to design 

and build systems that manage critical 

processes. Today those include electrical 

distribution systems, light rail substations, 

communication systems, and highway 

management systems for customers in the 

oil and gas, transportation, manufacturing 

and utility industries. 

Whether public or private, projects are 

large and capital-intensive. They require 

multiple years to progress through the 

design-build-commission and test cycle.

Powell’s mission over the past 60-plus years 

has been to find ways to streamline this 

process for clients in two ways:

•  By being efficient and proactive in the 

way we provide services, and 

•  By expanding our scope and integrating 

our services so that project delivery 

becomes increasingly predictable, 

reliable and seamless.

In 2012 Powell began a multi-year 

expansion process of our own to meet the 

needs of our customers. This investment 

will provide additional capacity, increase 

our ability to produce offshore modules 

and position us to better serve the 

Canadian market. 

Shored up by our expertise in designing and 

integrating equipment, a skilled and trained 

workforce and our newly upgraded business 

processes, we are prepared to build and 

rebuild the foundations of the world. 

seamless deliVery of large, critical 
& complex projects has always 
been powell’s focus. this is a 
business that reQuires a specialist. 
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focuS on SafeTy &  
inTelliGence in The 

Powell specializes in critical environments. By their very nature, 
electrical power, mass transit, water and wastewater and 

manufacturing components carry risk — and operations are 
essential. Over the years, the standards for safety have been 

raised, as has demand for information about equipment, processes 
and results. From the beginning it has been our culture, and today 

the name Powell is associated with safety. We have pioneered 
some of the industry’s most respected innovations in this arena.
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futureBuilDinG SafeTy &  
innovaTion inTo our 

In today’s world, the key to improved safety for personnel, 
the public and the environment is accurate and timely 
information. The current focus is on detecting problems 
and speeding up the response to their solutions. Powell is 
focused on ways to add intelligence gathering and data 
communication, as well as operations monitoring. Our goal? 
To allow our customers to be proactive and ensure that 
resources are utilized in the safest way possible. 
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Powell’s history of developing 

innovative products and services is one 

of, not dramatic leaps, but constant 

and incremental improvement. Our 

breakthroughs have focused on making 

equipment, settings, construction and our 

own working environment smarter — and 

therefore safer. 

We developed the first arc-resistant 

switchgear, and we have expanded this 

line steadily over the years. We were 

among the first in the industry to include 

remote communication equipment in 

our packages, which helped to distance 

operators from harm’s way. 

We continue to make data monitoring and 

reporting technology more sophisticated, 

improving equipment performance and 

reducing risk for clients and operations. 

Our recent focus is in the field of thermal 

monitoring, which pinpoints “trouble 

spots” in distribution lines. This proactive 

approach — whether used in monitoring 

traffic or electrical current — is a significant 

advance in helping to avert breakdowns 

and crises.

Within our own operations, Powell 

invests in training, supervision and 

high-end equipment to maintain our 

internal safety culture. Our approach 

is to use intelligence, both human and 

technological, to minimize risk. 

powell has a “safety culture.” 
eVerything from our engineering 
design to the way we operate 
in our shop is judged by how 
effectiVely it controls risk. 
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 Powell has never been satisfied with  

easy answers.

We specialize in the largest, most complex 

and difficult distribution projects for 

critical processes — projects that required 

innovative thinking, engineering and 

delivery methods. 

Our most fundamental task is to provide 

solutions.This simple mission is what has 

led to 65 years of growth and success. 

During our history we have listened to 

customers and anticipated their needs.  

We have refined our expertise and 

developed new approaches. Through 

decades of experience we have evolved 

into a provider of comprehensive services 

which add value and manage risk every 

step of the way.

Our value lies in maintaining our ability 

to take on challenges and provide the 

solutions that satisfy the ever-changing 

needs of our customers around the world. 

For our future, that remains the solution. 

future 
thinking
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consolidated  
financial highlights

(In thousands, except per-share data)

Years Ended September 30,

    2008  2009   2010  2011  2012

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data

Revenues $  638,704 $  665,851  $ 550,692 $ 562,397 $ 717,194

Gross Profit   126,406  145,049  142,057  99,930  139,938

Net Income (Loss)  25,847  39,717  25,008  (2,715 )  29,657 

Per-Share Data

Basic Earnings (Loss)   2.29  3.48  2.17  (0.23 )  2.50 

Diluted Earnings (Loss)  2.26  3.43  2.14  (0.23 )  2.49

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Working Capital   150,699  165,861   187,445  198,958  215,537

Total Assets   397,634  404,840   400,712  421,676  448,312

Long-Term Debt   33,944  4,800   5,202  4,301  3,630

Total Stockholders’ Equity   206,874  246,761   277,303  275,343  310,103

revenues 
(in millions of dollars)

net income 
(in millions of dollars)

ending backlog
(in millions of dollars)
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ManageMent’s Discussion anD analysis of 
financial conDition anD Results of opeRations
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements and related 
notes. Any forward-looking statements made by or on our behalf 
are made pursuant to the safe-harbor provisions of the Private 
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Readers are cautioned that 
such forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties in 
that the actual results may differ materially from those projected 
in the forward-looking statements. For a description of the risks 
and uncertainties, please refer to the Company’s filings with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission, copies of which are 
available from the Company without charge.

overview
We develop, design, manufacture and service custom engineered-
to-order equipment and systems for the management and control 
of electrical energy and other critical processes. Headquartered 
in Houston, Texas, we serve the transportation, environmental, 
energy, industrial and utility industries. Our business operations 
are consolidated into two business segments: Electrical Power 
Products and Process Control Systems. Revenues and costs are 
primarily related to engineered-to-order equipment and systems 
which precludes us from providing detailed price and volume 
information.

The markets in which Powell participates in are capital-intensive 
and cyclical in nature. Cyclicality is predominantly driven by 
customer demand, global economic conditions and anticipated 
environmental or regulatory changes which affect the manner 
in which our customers proceed with capital investments. Our 
customers analyze various factors including the demand for 
oil, gas and electrical energy, the overall financial environment, 
governmental budgets, regulatory actions and environmental 
concerns. These factors influence the release of new capital 
projects by our customers.

We entered fiscal 2012 with a backlog of unfilled orders of $443.0 
million, an increase of $160.7 million over the prior year, which 
provided our revenue growth during fiscal 2012. As of September 
30, 2012, our order backlog remains strong; however, the quotation-
to-order period is beginning to lengthen. We enter fiscal 2013 with 
a backlog of unfilled orders of $436.7 million. Our backlog includes 
various projects, some of which are for petrochemical, oil and gas 
construction and transportation infrastructure projects which take 
a number of months to produce.

Results of opeRations
twelve Months ended september 30, 2012 (fiscal 2012) 
compared to twelve Months ended september 30, 2011 
(fiscal 2011)

Revenue and gross profit
Consolidated revenues increased 27.5%, or $154.8 million, to 
$717.2 million in Fiscal 2012. Domestic revenues increased by 8.9%, 
or $33.9 million, to $412.8 million in Fiscal 2012 and international 
revenues increased 65.9%, or $120.9 million, to $304.4 million 

in Fiscal 2012. Revenues increased primarily as a result of an 
increase in activity in complex petrochemical and oil and gas 
construction projects, as a result of our Electrical Power Products 
business segment.

Gross profit in Fiscal 2012 increased 40.0%, or $40.0 million, 
to $139.9 million in Fiscal 2012. Gross profit as a percentage of 
revenues increased to 19.5% in Fiscal 2012, compared to 17.8% 
in Fiscal 2011 primarily as a result of our Electrical Power Products 
business segment.

electrical power products
Electrical Power Products business segment revenues increased 
28.7%, or $153.3 million, to $686.6 million in Fiscal 2012. Revenues 
increased primarily as a result of an increase in project activity 
in certain markets. Revenues from public and private utilities 
decreased $51.3 million to $115.3 million in Fiscal 2012. Revenues 
from commercial and industrial customers increased $202.2 million 
to $522.7 million in Fiscal 2012. Revenues from municipal and 
transit projects increased $2.4 million to $48.6 in Fiscal 2012.

Electrical Power Products business segment gross profit increased 
44.4%, or $40.7 million, to $132.5 million in Fiscal 2012. Gross 
profit, as a percentage of revenues, increased to 19.3% in Fiscal 
2012 compared to 17.2% in Fiscal 2011, as a result of favorable 
operational execution and project management on certain large 
complex projects that were completed or near completion. Our 
increase in project activity in Fiscal 2012 also improved our ability 
to cover fixed and overhead operating costs, partially offset by 
the challenges on certain large projects at Powell Canada. These 
challenges resulted from scope changes and cost overruns on 
certain Canadian projects. We are currently pursuing recovery of 
certain of these costs; however, there is no assurance these costs 
can be recovered. Revenues have not been recognized on such 
costs as recovery has not been deemed probable until change 
orders are approved by the customer.

process control systems
Process Control Systems business segment revenues increased 
5.2%, or $1.5 million, to $30.6 million in Fiscal 2012. Business 
segment gross profit, as a percentage of revenues, decreased 
to 24.4% for Fiscal 2012, compared to 28.2% for Fiscal 2011. This 
decrease in gross profit as a percentage of revenues is related to 
the mix of project types.

For additional information related to our business segments, see 
Note M of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses, as a percentage of 
revenues, decreased to 12.4% in Fiscal 2012 from 15.1% in Fiscal 
2011. Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased as 
a percentage of revenues in Fiscal 2012 as a result of our increase 
in revenues. Consolidated selling, general and administrative 
expenses increased $3.8 million to $88.9 million in Fiscal 2012. 
This increase is primarily related to increased personnel costs 
and incentive compensation resulting from higher levels of 
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operating performance. Additionally, separation payments of $2.6 
million to our former CEO were recorded in selling, general and 
administrative expenses in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2011.

amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets decreased to $2.6 million in 
Fiscal 2012, compared to $4.8 million in Fiscal 2011. This decrease 
resulted from the impairment of the intangible assets recorded in 
Fiscal 2011 related to Powell Canada.

income tax provision
Our provision for income taxes reflected an effective tax rate on 
earnings before income taxes of 38.5% in Fiscal 2012 compared 
to 167.9% in Fiscal 2011. The effective tax rate for both Fiscal 
2012 and 2011 were negatively impacted by our inability to 
record the tax benefit related to pre-tax losses in Canada, offset 
by the favorable impact on our effective tax rate for the domestic 
production activities deduction in the United States.

net income (loss) attributable to powell industries, inc.
In Fiscal 2012, we recorded net income of $29.7 million, or 
earnings of $2.49 per diluted share, compared to a net loss of $2.7 
million, or a loss of $0.23 per diluted share, in Fiscal 2011. Net 
income improved in Fiscal 2012 as a result of increased revenue 
and earnings from increased activity and favorable operational 
and project execution in Fiscal 2012. Fiscal 2011 was negatively 
impacted by the impairment of intangible assets for Powell Canada 
of $7.2 million, the $2.6 million separation charge with our former 
CEO and our inability to record the tax benefits related to the pre-
tax losses in Canada.

Backlog
The order backlog at September 30, 2012, was $436.7 million, 
compared to $443.0 million at September 30, 2011. New orders 
placed during Fiscal 2012 totaled $710.7 million compared to 
$725.2 million in Fiscal 2011. The backlog for Fiscal 2012 decreased 
slightly due to the completion of certain complex oil and gas 
production and petrochemical projects.

twelve Months ended september 30, 2011 (fiscal 2011) 
compared to twelve Months ended september 30, 2010 
(fiscal 2010)

Revenue and gross profit
Consolidated revenues increased $11.7 million to $562.4 million 
in Fiscal 2011 compared to $550.7 million in Fiscal 2010. Revenues 
increased primarily as a result of the $25.0 million full year impact 
of revenues from Powell Canada which was acquired in the first 
quarter of Fiscal 2010. Domestic revenues decreased by 3.6% to 
$378.9 million in Fiscal 2011 compared to $393.3 million in Fiscal 
2010, primarily due to reduced manufacturing and service activities 
because of the lower level of backlog at the beginning of Fiscal 
2011. International revenues increased from $157.6 million in Fiscal 
2010 to $183.5 million in Fiscal 2011. Gross profit in Fiscal 2011 
decreased by $42.1 million compared to Fiscal 2010, as a result 
of the competitive pressure on margins, as well as execution-
related challenges on certain large projects at Powell Canada. 
These factors also contributed to the decrease in gross profit as 

a percentage of revenues to 17.8% in Fiscal 2011, compared to 
25.8% in Fiscal 2010.

electrical power products
Our Electrical Power Products business segment recorded 
revenues of $533.3 million in Fiscal 2011, compared to $517.1 
million in Fiscal 2010. Revenues increased as a result of the $25.0 
million full year impact of revenues from Powell Canada which was 
acquired in the first quarter of Fiscal 2010. Excluding the increase 
related to the revenues at Powell Canada, revenues decreased 
primarily due to reduced manufacturing and service activities 
because of the lower level of backlog at the beginning of Fiscal 
2011. In Fiscal 2011, revenues from public and private utilities were 
$166.6 million compared to $148.6 million in Fiscal 2010. Revenues 
from commercial and industrial customers totaled $320.5 million in 
Fiscal 2011, a decrease of $10.2 million compared to Fiscal 2010. 
Municipal and transit projects generated revenues of $46.2 million 
in Fiscal 2011 compared to $37.6 million in Fiscal 2010.

Business segment gross profit, as a percentage of revenues, 
was 17.2% in Fiscal 2011 compared to 25.1% in Fiscal 2010. This 
decrease in gross profit as a percentage of revenues resulted 
primarily from the competitive pressure on margins, as well as 
execution-related challenges on certain large projects at Powell 
Canada. Gross profit in Fiscal 2010 benefitted from the favorable 
execution of large projects, as well as cancellation fees and the 
successful negotiation of change orders on projects which were 
substantially completed in prior periods.

process control systems
In Fiscal 2011, our Process Control Systems business segment 
recorded revenues of $29.1 million, a decrease from $33.6 million 
in Fiscal 2010. Business segment gross profit, as a percentage 
of revenues, decreased to 28.2% for Fiscal 2011, compared to 
36.5% for Fiscal 2010. This decrease in revenues and gross profit 
as a percentage of revenues resulted from a less favorable mix of 
projects.

For additional information related to our business segments, see 
Note M of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses
Consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses 
decreased to 15.1% of revenues in Fiscal 2011 compared to 15.3% 
of revenues in Fiscal 2010. Selling, general and administrative 
expenses remained relatively unchanged at $85.1 million in Fiscal 
2011 compared to $84.5 million in Fiscal 2010. Decreases in 
short-term and long-term incentive compensation resulting from 
lower earnings compared to Fiscal 2010 were offset by increased 
depreciation expense related to the Company’s ERP system in 
Fiscal 2011, compared to Fiscal 2010. Additionally, separation 
payments of $2.6 million to our former CEO were recorded in 
selling, general and administrative expenses in the fourth quarter 
of which $1.2 million was paid in October 2011, with the balance 
being comprised of deferred payments and compensation 
expense related to the vesting of outstanding equity-based 
awards. In the prior year there were acquisition-related costs of 
$2.4 million related to the acquisition of Powell Canada. Selling, 
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general and administrative expenses decreased as a percentage 
of revenues in Fiscal 2011 as a result of the increase in revenue of 
$11.7 million.

amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets increased to $4.8 million in Fiscal 
2011, compared to $4.5 million in Fiscal 2010. This increase was 
from the full year impact of the amortization of the intangible 
assets recorded as a result of acquisitions in Canada.

gain on sale of investment
Gain on sale of investment resulted from a $1.2 million gain 
recorded in the second quarter of Fiscal 2011 from cash received 
for the sale of our 50% equity investment in Kazakhstan which was 
previously a part of the acquisition of Powell Canada in Fiscal 2010.

impairments
An impairment charge of $7.2 million was recorded in Fiscal 
2011 related to the impairment of the intangible assets related 
to Powell Canada. This impairment of intangible assets was the 
result of continued operating losses from Powell Canada and 
the execution-related challenges on certain large projects, which 
reduced the Company’s projections for future revenues and cash 
flows from Powell Canada. 

An impairment of goodwill of $7.5 million was recorded in Fiscal 
2010 related to the Powell Canada acquisition. The Company’s 
strategic decision to exit the 50% owned joint venture in Kazakhstan 
and delays in the anticipated growth in capital investments in the 
Oil Sands Region of western Canada, relative to our expectations, 
resulted in the impairment charge.

income tax provision
Our provision for income taxes reflected an effective tax rate on 
earnings before income taxes of 167.9% in Fiscal 2011 compared 
to 44.1% in Fiscal 2010. The effective tax rate for Fiscal 2011 was 
negatively impacted by our inability to record the tax benefit of $4.5 
million related to pre-tax losses in Canada, offset by the favorable 
impact on our effective tax rate for the domestic production 
activities deduction and the research and development credit in 
the United States.

net income (loss) attributable to powell industries, inc.
In Fiscal 2011, we recorded a net loss of $2.7 million, or a loss of 
$0.23 per diluted share, compared to net income of $25.0 million, or 
earnings of $2.14 per diluted share, in Fiscal 2010. The impairment 
of intangible assets for Powell Canada of $7.2 million, and our 
inability to record the tax benefits of $4.5 million related to the 
pre-tax losses in Canada contributed to our net loss in Fiscal 2011. 
Fiscal 2011 was also negatively impacted by execution-related 
challenges on certain large projects at Powell Canada. The overall 
decrease in net income in Fiscal 2011 compared to Fiscal 2010 
resulted from competitive pressure on gross margins compared to 
Fiscal 2010 which benefitted from the favorable execution of large 
projects, as well as cancellation fees and the successful negotiation 
of change orders on projects which were substantially completed in 
prior periods. Net income for Fiscal 2010 was negatively impacted 
by the impairment of goodwill of approximately $7.5 million and 
our inability to record the tax benefit of $3.7 million related to the 
pre-tax losses in Canada.

Backlog
The order backlog at September 30, 2011, was $443.0 million, 
compared to $282.3 million at September 30, 2010. New orders 
placed during Fiscal 2011 totaled $725.2 million compared to 
$466.8 million in Fiscal 2010. Backlog increased primarily due 
to increased activity in petrochemical and offshore oil and gas 
construction projects. Some of our recent orders received were for 
large petrochemical and offshore oil and gas construction projects 
which take several months to produce, and most were awarded in 
competitive bid situations.

liquiDity anD capital ResouRces
Cash and cash equivalents decreased to $90.0 million at 
September 30, 2012, compared to $123.5 million at September 
30, 2011, primarily as a result of the recent purchases of land to 
build facilities in the United States and Canada during Fiscal 2012 
to support our continued expansion of the offshore production 
markets and the Canadian Oil Sands market. As of September 30, 
2012, current assets exceeded current liabilities by 2.6 times and 
our debt to total capitalization ratio was 1.4%.

We have a $75.0 million revolving credit facility in the U.S., which 
expires in December 2016. As of September 30, 2012, there were 
no amounts borrowed under this line of credit. We also have a 
$10.2 million revolving credit facility in Canada. At September 
30, 2012, there was no balance outstanding under the Canadian 
revolving credit facility. Total long-term debt and capital lease 
obligations, including current maturities, totaled $4.4 million at 
September 30, 2012, compared to $5.4 million at September 30, 
2011. Letters of credit outstanding were $36.6 million and $13.2 
million at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, which reduce 
our availability under our U.S. credit facility and our Canadian 
revolving credit facility. Amounts available under the U.S. revolving 
credit facility were $38.5 million at September 30, 2012. Amounts 
available under the Canadian revolving credit facility were $10.0 
million at September 30, 2012. For further information regarding 
our debt, see Notes G and K of Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

Approximately $8.0 million of our cash at September 30, 2012, was 
held internationally for international operations. It is our intention 
to indefinitely reinvest all current and future foreign earnings 
internationally in order to ensure sufficient working capital and 
support and expand these operations. In the event that the 
Company elects to repatriate some or all of the foreign earnings 
that were previously deemed to be indefinitely reinvested outside 
the U.S., under current tax laws we would incur additional tax 
expense upon such repatriation.

We believe that cash available and borrowing capacity under our 
existing credit facilities should be sufficient to finance anticipated 
operating activities, capital improvements and expansions, as well 
as debt repayments for the foreseeable future. We will continue to 
monitor the factors that drive our markets and strive to maintain 
our leadership and competitive advantage in the markets we serve 
while aligning our cost structures with market conditions.
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operating activities
During Fiscal 2012, cash used in operating activities was $6.0 million. 
During Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2010, cash provided by operating 
activities was $15.5 million and $64.1 million, respectively. Cash 
flow from operations is primarily influenced by demand for our 
products and services and is impacted as our progress payment 
terms with our customers are matched with the payment terms with 
our suppliers. During Fiscal 2012, the cash used in operations of 
$6.0 million was primarily the result of increased unbilled contract 
receivables based on progress billing milestones. The decrease 
in Fiscal 2011 cash flow from operations resulted primarily from 
the net loss and increase in accounts receivable. During Fiscal 
2010, cash provided by operating activities was $64.1 million and 
resulted primarily from net income and decreases in accounts 
receivable, offset by decreases in accounts payable and income 
taxes payable. 

investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment during Fiscal 2012 
totaled $29.1 million compared to $7.3 million and $4.4 million 
in Fiscal 2011 and 2010, respectively. A significant portion of the 
investments in Fiscal 2012 was to acquire land and build facilities in 
the United States and Canada to support our continued expansion 
in the offshore production markets and Canadian Oil Sands. During 
Fiscal 2011, we received cash of $1.2 million from the sale of our 
50% equity investment in Kazakhstan and established a restricted 

cash account of $1.0 million for the purchase of land near Houston, 
Texas, which subsequently occurred in October 2011. During 
Fiscal 2011, our capital expenditures primarily related to the 
implementation of ERP systems and construction of a warehouse 
at one of our U.S. facilities. During Fiscal 2010, we paid cash of 
$23.4 million, excluding debt assumed and acquisition-related 
expenses, to acquire Powell Canada. Additionally, $0.6 million 
was paid to acquire the noncontrolling interest related to our joint 
venture in Singapore (Powell Asia), which has been strategically 
realigned from an operating entity to a sales and marketing 
function within Powell. 

There were no significant proceeds from the sale of fixed assets in 
Fiscal 2012, 2011 or 2010. 

financing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities was $1.3 million during 
Fiscal 2012 due to cash being received from the exercise of stock 
options. Net cash used in financing activities was $0.8 million 
during Fiscal 2011. Net cash used in financing activities was $19.4 
million in Fiscal 2010, as we paid down our Canadian revolving 
line of credit and term loan from the cash flow provided by our 
operating activities.

contractual and other obligations
At September 30, 2012, our long-term contractual obligations were limited to debt and leases. The table below details our commitments 
by type of obligation, including interest if applicable, and the period that the payment will become due (in thousands).

as of september 30, 2012,
payments Due by period:

long-term Debt 
obligations

capital lease 
obligations

operating lease 
obligations total

Less than 1 year  $ 416  $ 347  $ 5,597  $ 6,360

1 to 3 years  827  32  8,108  8,967

3 to 5 years  820  —  5,184  6,004

More than 5 years   2,018   —   7,725  9,743

Total long-term contractual obligations  $ 4,081  $ 379  $ 26,614  $ 31,074
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As of September 30, 2012, the total unrecognized tax benefit 
related to uncertain tax positions was $0.5 million. We estimate 
that none of this will be paid within the next 12 months. However, 
we believe that it is reasonably possible that within the next 12 
months, the total unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by 
approximately 39% due to the expiration of certain statutes of 
limitations in various state and local jurisdictions. We are unable to 
make reasonably reliable estimates regarding the timing of future 
cash outflows, if any, associated with the remaining unrecognized 
tax benefits.

other commercial commitments
We are contingently liable for secured and unsecured letters of 
credit of $43.6 million as of September 30, 2012, of which $36.6 
million reduces our borrowing capacity.

The following table reflects potential cash outflows that may result 
in the event that we are unable to perform under our contracts  
(in thousands):

as of september 30, 2012,
payments Due by period:

letters of 
credit

Less than 1 year  $ 23,997

1 to 3 years  8,162

3 to 5 years  11,436

More than 5 years  —

Total long-term commercial obligations  $ 43,595

We also had performance and maintenance bonds totaling $249.1 
million that were outstanding at September 30, 2012. Performance 
and maintenance bonds are used to guarantee contract 
performance to our customers.

outlook
The markets in which Powell participates are capital-intensive 
and cyclical in nature. Cyclicality is predominantly driven by 
customer demand, global economic conditions and anticipated 
environmental or regulatory changes which affect the manner 
in which our customers proceed with capital investments. 
Market cycles are many months or years in length and require 
our customers to analyze factors which include the demand for 
oil, gas and electrical energy, the overall financial environment, 
governmental budgets, the outlook for regulatory actions and 
environmental concerns. Orders take a number of months to 
produce, are traditionally awarded in competitive bid situations 
and scheduling is matched to the customer requirements which 
may change during the course of any particular project.

Growth in demand for energy is expected to continue over the 
long term. This, when coupled with the need for replacement 
of existing infrastructure that is at the end of its life cycle, 
demonstrates a continued need for products and services 

produced by us. A heightened environmental concern, together 
with upward pressure on gasoline prices, has expanded the 
popularity of urban transit systems. This should increase demand 
for investment in transit infrastructure, contingent upon the 
availability of government financing. A sluggish global economy 
and uncertain market conditions in various locations around the 
world will place competitive market pressure on margins. The 
outlook for continued opportunities for our products and services 
remains positive; however, the timing and pricing of many of these 
projects is difficult to predict.

Our operating results are frequently impacted by the timing and 
resolution of change orders and project close-out which could 
cause gross margins to improve during the period in which these 
items are approved and finalized with customers. As a result of 
these issues, the timing and ultimate financial outcome on some 
projects is often difficult to predict.

We believe that cash available and borrowing capacity under our 
existing credit facility should be sufficient to finance anticipated 
operational activities, capital improvements and debt repayments 
for the foreseeable future. During this period of economic and 
market uncertainty, we will continue to monitor our markets and 
will strive to maintain our leadership and competitive advantage in 
the markets we serve while aligning our cost structures with market 
conditions.

effects of inflation
We are impacted by inflation which has caused increases in our 
costs of raw materials, primarily copper, aluminum and steel, during 
the past three years. Fixed-price contracts can limit our ability to 
pass these increases to our customers, thus negatively impacting 
our earnings. We anticipate that the inflation in commodity prices 
could impact our operations in fiscal 2013.

quantitative anD qualitative DisclosuRes aBout 
MaRket Risk
We are exposed to certain market risks arising from transactions 
we have entered into in the normal course of business. These risks 
primarily relate to fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange 
rates and commodity prices.

interest Rate Risk
If we decide to borrow under one of our credit facilities, we will 
be subject to market risk resulting from changes in interest rates 
related to our floating rate bank credit facility. If we were to 
make such borrowings, a hypothetical 100 basis point increase 
in variable interest rates may result in a material impact to our 
financial statements. While we do not currently have any derivative 
contracts to hedge our exposure to interest rate risk, we have in 
the past and may in the future enter into such contracts. During 
each of the past three years, we have not experienced a significant 
effect on our business due to changes in interest rates.
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foreign currency transaction Risk
We have operations that expose us to currency risk in the British 
Pound Sterling, the Canadian Dollar and to a lesser extent the 
Euro. Amounts invested in our foreign operations are translated 
into U.S. Dollars at the exchange rates in effect at the balance 
sheet date. The resulting translation adjustments are recorded as 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), a component 
of stockholders’ equity in our consolidated balance sheets. 
We believe the exposure to the effects that fluctuating foreign 
currencies have on our consolidated results of operations is limited 
because the foreign operations primarily invoice customers and 
collect obligations in their respective currencies or U.S. Dollars. 
Our international operations are financed utilizing local credit 
facilities denominated in local currencies. Additionally, expenses 
associated with these transactions are generally contracted and 
paid for in the same local currencies. A 10% unfavorable change 
in the U.S. Dollar exchange rate, relative to other functional 
currencies in which we operate, would not materially impact our 
consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2012.

During Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2012, we entered into eight foreign 
currency forward contracts to manage the volatility of future cash 
flows on certain long-term contracts that are denominated in the 
British Pound Sterling. The contracts were designated as cash 
flow hedges for accounting purposes. The changes in fair value 
related to the effective portion of the hedges are recognized as a 
component of accumulated other comprehensive income on our 
consolidated balance sheets. At September 30, 2012, all foreign 
currency forward contracts have been settled, with no balances 
recorded on our consolidated balance sheets related to these 
transactions.

commodity price Risk
We are subject to market risk from fluctuating market prices of 
certain raw materials. While such materials are typically available 
from numerous suppliers, commodity raw materials are subject 
to price fluctuations. We attempt to pass along such commodity 
price increases to our customers on a contract-by-contract basis 

to avoid a negative effect on profit margin. While we may do so 
in the future, we have not currently entered into any derivative 
contracts to hedge our exposure to commodity risk. We continue 
to experience price volatility with some of our key raw materials 
and components. Fixed-price contracts may limit our ability to pass 
cost increases to our customers, thus negatively impacting our 
earnings. Fluctuations in commodity prices may have a material 
impact on our future earnings and cash flows.

Market Risk
We are also exposed to general market and other risk and its 
potential impact on accounts receivable or costs and estimated 
earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts. The 
amounts recorded may be at risk if our customers’ ability to pay 
these obligations is negatively impacted by economic conditions. 
Our customers and their industries are typically EPC firms, oil and 
gas producers, oil and gas pipelines, refineries, petrochemical 
plants, electrical power generators, public and private utilities, co-
generation facilities, mining/metals operations, pulp and paper 
plants, transportation authorities, governmental agencies and 
other large industrial customers. We maintain ongoing discussions 
with customers regarding contract status with respect to payment 
status, change orders and billing terms in an effort to monitor 
collections of amounts billed.
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poWell inDustRies, inc. anD suBsiDiaRies consoliDateD Balance sHeets
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

september 30,

assets  2012  2011

current assets:   

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 90,040  $ 123,466
Cash held in escrow  —  1,000
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,399 and $391, respectively  125,771  109,317

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts 86,734 51,568

Inventories, net 32,917 36,640

Income taxes receivable 485 4,071

Deferred income taxes 4,598 3,580

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 5,865 7,040

Total Current Assets 346,410 336,682

Property, plant and equipment, net 78,652 59,637

Goodwill 1,003 1,003

Intangible assets, net 13,317 15,847

Other assets 8,930 8,507

Total Assets  $ 448,312  $ 421,676

liaBilities anD stockHolDeRs’ equity   

current liabilities:   

Current maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations  $ 725  $ 1,140

Income taxes payable 3,516 881

Accounts payable 48,490 56,893

Accrued salaries, bonuses and commissions 25,822 22,314

Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts 37,144 44,523

Accrued product warranty 5,714 4,603

Other accrued expenses 9,462 7,370

Total Current Liabilities 130,873 137,724

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net of current maturities 3,630 4,301

Deferred compensation 2,891 3,242

Postretirement benefit obligation 685 900

Other liabilities 130 166

Total Liabilities 138,209 146,333

Commitments and Contingencies (Note K)   

stockholders’ equity:   

Preferred stock, par value $.01; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued  —  —
Common stock, par value $.01; 30,000,000 shares authorized; 11,915,673 and  
11,752,393 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 119 117

Additional paid-in capital 38,452 34,343

Retained earnings 271,911 242,254

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (379) (1,371)

Total Stockholders’ Equity 310,103 275,343
 Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity  $ 448,312  $ 421,676

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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poWell inDustRies, inc. anD suBsiDiaRies consoliDateD stateMents of opeRations
(In thousands, except per share data)

year ended september 30, 2012 2011 2010

Revenues  $ 717,194  $ 562,397  $ 550,692

Cost of goods sold 577,256 462,467 408,635

Gross profit 139,938 99,930 142,057

Selling, general and administrative expenses 88,947 85,058 84,457

Amortization of intangible assets 2,599 4,752 4,477

Impairments — 7,158 7,452

Operating income 48,392 2,962 45,671

Gain on sale of investment — (1,229) —

Interest expense 272 408 870

Interest income (114) (214) (260)

Income before income taxes 48,234 3,997 45,061

Income tax provision 18,577 6,712 19,894

Net income (loss)  29,657 (2,715) 25,167

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest — — (159)

Net income (loss) attributable to Powell Industries, Inc.  $ 29,657  $ (2,715) $ 25,008

earnings (loss) per share attributable to powell industries, inc.:   

Basic  $ 2.50  $ (0.23) $ 2.17

Diluted  $ 2.49  $ (0.23) $ 2.14

Weighted average shares:    

Basic 11,850 11,735 11,545

Diluted 11,925 11,735 11,693

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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poWell inDustRies, inc. anD suBsiDiaRies consoliDateD stateMents of stockHolDeRs’ equity
(In thousands)

other  
comprehensive  

income (loss)

common stock additional 
paid-in  
capital

Retained  
earnings

accumulated other  
comprehensive 

income/(loss) totalshares amount

Balance, September 30, 2009 11,480  $ 115  $ 29,401  $ 219,961  $ (2,716)  $ 246,761

Net income  $ 25,008 — — — 25,008 — 25,008

Foreign currency translation 
adjustments 1,467 — — — — 1,467 1,467

Exercise of stock options — 109 1 1,699 — — 1,700

Stock-based compensation — 58 1 791 — — 792

Income tax benefit from stock options 
exercised — — — 878 — — 878

Amortization of restricted stock — — — 467 — — 467

Issuance of restricted stock — 30 — 333 — — 333

Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges, 
net of tax of $265 (206) — — — — (206) (206)

Postretirement benefit adjustment,  
net of tax of $58 103 — — — — 103 103

Total comprehensive income 26,372 — — 25,008 1,364 26,372

Balance, September 30, 2010 11,677 117 33,569 244,969 (1,352) 277,303

Net loss (2,715) — — — (2,715) — (2,715)

Foreign currency translation 
adjustments (19) — — — — (19) (19)

Exercise of stock options — 27 — 495 — — 495

Stock-based compensation — 20 — (1,223) — — (1,223)

Income tax benefit from stock options 
exercised — — — 180 — — 180

Amortization of restricted stock — — — 280 — — 280

Issuance of restricted stock — 28 — 1,042 — — 1,042

Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, 
net of tax of $94 111 — — — — 111 111

Postretirement benefit adjustment, net 
of tax of $60 (111) — — — — (111) (111)

Total comprehensive income (loss) (2,734) — — — (2,715) (19) (2,734)

Balance, September 30, 2011 11,752 117 34,343 242,254 (1,371) 275,343

Net income 29,657 — — — 29,657 — 29,657

Foreign currency translation 
adjustments 833 — — — — 833 833

Exercise of stock options — 98 1 1,798 — — 1,799

Stock-based compensation — 7 — 1,004 — — 1,004

Income tax benefit from stock options 
exercised — — — 589 — — 589

Amortization of restricted stock — — — 135 — — 135

Issuance of restricted stock — 74 1 583 — — 584

Retirement of stock — (15) — — — — —

Postretirement benefit adjustment,  
net of tax of $20 159 — — — — 159 159

Total comprehensive income  $ 30,649 — — — 29,657 992 30,649

Balance, September 30, 2012 11,916  $ 119  $ 38,452  $ 271,911  $ (379)  $ 310,103

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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poWell inDustRies, inc. anD suBsiDiaRies consoliDateD stateMents of casH floWs
(In thousands)

year ended september 30, 2012 2011 2010

operating activities:

Net income (loss)  $ 29,657  $ (2,715) $ 25,167
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash  
provided by operating activities:    
Depreciation 10,465 10,598 9,154
Amortization 2,612 4,848 4,549
Impairments — 7,158 7,452
Stock-based compensation 1,723 99 1,929
Bad debt expense (recovery) 842 (114) 410
Deferred income taxes (1,422) (425) (348)
Gain on sale of investment — (1,229) —

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    
Accounts receivable, net (16,209) (17,616) 39,687
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts (34,755) (13,519) 8,243
Inventories 3,948 1,542 12,320
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4,821 4,514 (5,813)
Other assets (13) (2,627) 440
Accounts payable and income taxes payable (6,036) 14,487 (20,281)
Accrued liabilities 6,411 (4,255) (5,392)
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts (7,492) 13,553 (13,762)
Other, net (517) 1,188 378

Net cash provided (used in) by operating activities (5,965) 15,487 64,133

investing activities:    
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 195 354 14
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (29,063) (7,347) (4,420)
Proceeds from sale of investment — 1,229 —
Decrease in cash held in escrow 1,000 — —
Increase in cash held in escrow — (1,000) —
Purchase of noncontrolling interest – Powell Asia — — (659)
Acquisition of Powell Canada — — (23,394)

Net cash used in investing activities (27,868) (6,764) (28,459)

financing activities:    
Borrowings on Canadian revolving line of credit 7,992 7,810 891
Payments on Canadian revolving line of credit (7,992) (7,818) (13,984)
Payments on Canadian term loan — — (2,429)
Payments on industrial development revenue bonds (400) (400) (400)
Payments on deferred acquisition payable — — (4,292)
Payments on short-term and other financing (717) (1,068) (1,087)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 1,799 495 1,700
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 589 180 209

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,271 (801) (19,392)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (32,562) 7,922 16,282
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (864) 191 1,668
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 123,466 115,353 97,403
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ 90,040  $ 123,466  $ 115,353

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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poWell inDustRies, inc. anD suBsiDiaRies  
notes to consoliDateD financial stateMents

a.  Business and organization
Powell Industries, Inc. (we, us, our, Powell or the Company) was 
incorporated in the state of Delaware in 2004 as a successor 
to a Nevada company incorporated in 1968. The Nevada 
corporation was the successor to a company founded by William 
E. Powell in 1947, which merged into the Company in 1977. 
Our major subsidiaries, all of which are wholly-owned, include: 
Powell Electrical Systems, Inc.; Transdyn, Inc.; Powell Industries 
International, Inc.; Switchgear & Instrumentation Limited (S&I) and 
Powell Canada Inc.

We develop, design, manufacture and service custom engineered-
to-order equipment and systems for the management and control 
of electrical energy and other critical processes. Headquartered 
in Houston, Texas, we serve the transportation, environmental, 
energy, industrial and utility industries.

B.  suMMaRy of significant accounting policies

principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 
Powell and our wholly-owned subsidiaries. The financial position 
and results of operation of our Singapore joint venture, in which 
we held a majority ownership, have also been consolidated. As a 
result of this consolidation, we record noncontrolling interest on 
our balance sheet for our joint venture partner’s share of equity 
in the joint venture. All significant intercompany accounts and 
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made in prior years’ financial 
statements to conform to the presentation used in the current 
year. These reclassifications have not resulted in any changes to 
previously reported net income for any periods.

use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. 
GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial 
statements and accompanying footnotes. The most significant 
estimates used in our financial statements affect revenue and cost 
recognition for construction contracts, the allowance for doubtful 
accounts, provision for excess and obsolete inventory, goodwill 
and other intangible assets, self-insurance, warranty accruals, 
income taxes and estimates related to acquisition valuations. The 
amounts recorded for insurance claims, warranties, legal, income 
taxes and other contingent liabilities require judgments regarding 
the amount of expenses that will ultimately be incurred. We 
base our estimates on historical experience and on various other 
assumptions, as well as the specific circumstances surrounding 
these contingent liabilities, in evaluating the amount of liability 
that should be recorded. Estimates may change as new events 
occur, additional information becomes available or operating 
environments change. Actual results may differ from our estimates.

cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits with 
banks and highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less.

Restricted cash
Cash of $1.0 million was held in escrow at September 30, 2011. This 
restricted cash was related to a purchase of land which closed in 
October 2011 for $6.5 million.

supplemental Disclosures of cash flow  
information (in thousands):

year ended september 30, 2012 2011 2010

Cash paid during the period for:   

Interest  $ 141  $ 102  $ 563

Income taxes, net of refunds 12,104 3,889 31,993

fair value of financial instruments
Financial instruments include cash, short-term investments, 
marketable securities, receivables, payables and debt obligations. 
Except as described below, due to the short-term nature of the 
investments, the book value is representative of their fair value. 
The carrying value of debt approximates fair value as interest rates 
are indexed to the Federal Funds Rate, the Canadian Prime Rate 
or the bank’s prime rate.

accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated net of allowances for doubtful 
accounts. We maintain and continually assess the adequacy of 
the allowance for doubtful accounts representing our estimate 
for losses resulting from the inability of our customers to pay 
amounts due to us. This estimated allowance is based on historical 
experience of uncollected accounts, the level of past due accounts, 
the overall level of outstanding accounts receivable, information 
about specific customers with respect to their inability to make 
payments and expectations of future conditions that could impact 
the collectibility of accounts receivable. Future changes in our 
customers’ operating performance and cash flows or in general 
economic conditions could have an impact on their ability to fully 
pay these amounts, which could have a material impact on our 
operating results. In most cases, receivables are not collateralized. 
However, we utilize letters of credit to secure payment on sales 
when possible. At September 30, 2012 and 2011, accounts 
receivable included retention amounts of $8.7 million and $6.1 
million, respectively. Retention amounts are in accordance with 
applicable provisions of engineering and construction contracts 
and become due upon completion of contractual requirements. 
Approximately $4.0 million of the retained amount at September 
30, 2012, is expected to be collected subsequent to September 
30, 2013.

costs and estimated earnings in excess of Billings  
on uncompleted contracts
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted 
contracts arise when revenues are recorded on a percentage-
of-completion basis but cannot be invoiced under the terms of 
the contract. Such amounts are invoiced upon completion of 
contractual milestones.
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Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted 
contracts also include certain costs associated with unapproved 
change orders. These costs are included when change order 
approval is probable. Amounts are carried at the lower of cost or 
net realizable value. Revenue is recognized to the extent of costs 
incurred when recovery is probable. The amounts recorded involve 
the use of judgments and estimates; thus, actual recoverable 
amounts could differ from original assumptions. 

In accordance with industry practice, assets and liabilities related to 
costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted 
contracts, as well as billings in excess of costs and estimated 
earnings on uncompleted contracts, have been classified as 
current. The contract cycle for certain long-term contracts may 
extend beyond one year; thus, collection of amounts related to 
these contracts may extend beyond one year.

inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market using 
weighted-average methods and include the cost of materials, labor 
and manufacturing overhead. We use estimates in determining 
the level of reserves required to state inventory at the lower of 
cost or market. Our estimates are based on market activity levels, 
production requirements, the physical condition of products and 
technological innovation. Changes in any of these factors may 
result in adjustments to the carrying value of inventory.

property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance 
are charged to expense when incurred. Expenditures for major 
renewals and improvements, which extend the useful lives of 
existing equipment, are capitalized and depreciated. Upon 
retirement or disposition of property, plant and equipment, the 
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from 
the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We review property, plant and equipment for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value may not be realizable. If an evaluation is required, 
the estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with the 
asset are compared to the asset’s carrying amount to determine if 
an impairment of such asset is necessary. This requires us to make 
long-term forecasts of the future revenues and the costs related 
to the assets subject to review. Forecasts require assumptions 
about demand for our products and future market conditions. 
Estimating future cash flows requires significant judgment, and our 
projections may vary from cash flows eventually realized. Future 
events and unanticipated changes to assumptions could require 
a provision for impairment in a future period. The effect of any 
impairment would be reflected in income (loss) from operations 
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. In addition, we 
estimate the useful lives of our property, plant and equipment and 
periodically review these estimates to determine whether these 
lives are appropriate. 

intangible assets Which are amortized
The costs of intangible assets with determinable useful lives are 
amortized over their estimated useful lives. When certain events 
or changes in operating conditions occur, the estimated future 
undiscounted cash flows associated with the asset are compared 
to the asset’s carrying amount to determine if an impairment of 
such assets is necessary. For intangible assets that are amortized, 
we review their estimated useful lives and evaluate whether events 
and circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining useful life. 
For additional information regarding our intangible assets and 
related impairment, see Note D.

goodwill and indefinite lived assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are 
evaluated for impairment annually, or immediately if conditions 
indicate that impairment could exist. The evaluation requires a 
two-step impairment test to identify potential goodwill impairment 
and measure the amount of a goodwill impairment loss. The first 
step of the test compares the fair value of a reporting unit with 
its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the carrying amount 
of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of the 
goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the amount of 
the impairment loss. Both steps of the goodwill impairment testing 
involve significant estimates.

income taxes
We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method, 
based on the income tax laws and rates in the countries in which 
operations are conducted and income is earned. This approach 
requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for 
the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and 
liabilities. Developing our provision for income taxes requires 
significant judgment and expertise in federal, international and 
state income tax laws, regulations and strategies, including the 
determination of deferred tax assets and liabilities and, if necessary, 
any valuation allowances that may be required for deferred tax 
assets. We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred 
tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. 
We believe that the deferred tax asset recorded as of September 
30, 2012, is realizable through future reversals of existing taxable 
temporary differences and future taxable income. If we were to 
subsequently determine that we would be able to realize deferred 
tax assets in the future in excess of our net recorded amount, an 
adjustment to deferred tax assets would increase earnings for the 
period in which such determination was made. We will continue 
to assess the adequacy of the valuation allowance on a quarterly 
basis. Our judgments and tax strategies are subject to audit by 
various taxing authorities.

The objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recognize the 
amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and 
deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of 
events that have been recognized in an entity’s financial statements 
or tax returns. We recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax 
position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will 
be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on 
the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in 
the financial statements from such a position should be measured 
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based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood 
of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Accounting literature 
also provides guidance on derecognition of income tax assets and 
liabilities, classification of current and deferred income tax assets 
and liabilities, accounting for interest and penalties associated with 
tax positions, and income tax disclosures. Judgment is required in 
assessing the future tax consequences of events that have been 
recognized in our financial statements or tax returns. Variations 
in the actual outcome of these future tax consequences could 
materially impact our financial statements.

Revenue Recognition
Our revenues are primarily generated from engineering and 
manufacturing of custom products under long-term contracts 
that may last from one month to several years, depending on the 
contract. Revenues from long-term contracts are recognized on 
the percentage-of-completion method of accounting.

Under the percentage-of-completion method of accounting, 
revenues are recognized as work is performed primarily based on 
the estimated completion to date calculated by multiplying the 
total contract price by percentage of performance to date, based 
on total costs or total labor dollars incurred to date to the total 
estimated costs or total labor dollars estimated at completion. 
The method used to determine the percentage of completion is 
typically the cost method, unless the labor method is determined 
to be a more accurate method of measuring the progress of the 
projects. Application of the percentage-of-completion method of 
accounting requires the use of estimates of costs to be incurred 
for the performance of the contract. Contract costs include all 
direct material, direct labor costs and those indirect costs related 
to contract performance, such as indirect labor, supplies, tools, 
repairs and all costs associated with operation of equipment. The 
cost estimation process is based upon the professional knowledge 
and experience of our engineers, project managers and financial 
professionals. Factors that are considered in estimating the work 
to be completed and ultimate contract recovery include the 
availability and productivity of labor, the nature and complexity 
of the work to be performed, the effect of change orders, the 
availability of materials, the effect of any delays in our project 
performance and the recoverability of any claims. Changes in 
job performance, job conditions, estimated profitability and 
final contract settlements, including our estimate of liquidated 
damages, if any, may result in revisions to costs and income, with 
their effects being recognized in the period in which the revisions 
are determined. Whenever revisions of estimated contract costs 
and contract values indicate that the contract costs will exceed 
estimated revenues, thus creating a loss, a provision for the total 
estimated loss is recorded in that period.

Revenues associated with maintenance, repair and service contracts 
are recognized when the services are performed. Expenses related 
to these types of services are recognized as incurred.

Warranties
We provide for estimated warranty costs at the time of sale based 
upon historical rates applicable to individual product lines. In 
addition, specific provisions are made when the costs of such 
warranties are expected to exceed accruals. Our standard terms 
and conditions of sale include a warranty for parts and service for 

the earlier of 18 months from the date of shipment or 12 months 
from the date of initial operations. Occasionally projects require 
warranty terms that are longer than our standard terms due to the 
nature of the project. Extended warranty terms may be negotiated 
and included in our contracts.

Research and Development expense
Research and development costs are charged to expense as 
incurred. These costs are included as a component of selling, 
general and administrative expenses on the Consolidated 
Statements of Operations. Such amounts were $7.7 million, 
$7.5 million and $6.5 million in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively.

foreign currency translation
The functional currency for our foreign subsidiaries is the local 
currency in which the entity is located. The financial statements 
of all subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the U.S. 
Dollar have been translated into U.S. Dollars. All assets and 
liabilities of foreign operations are translated into U.S. Dollars 
using year-end exchange rates, and all revenues and expenses 
are translated at average rates during the respective period. 
The U.S. Dollar results that arise from such translation, as well as 
exchange gains and losses on intercompany balances of a long-
term investment nature, are included in the cumulative currency 
translation adjustments in accumulated other comprehensive 
income in stockholders’ equity.

stock-Based compensation
We measure stock-based compensation cost at the grant date 
based on the fair value of the restricted stock award and recognize 
it as expense over the applicable vesting period of the stock award 
using the straight-line method. Excess income tax benefits related 
to share-based compensation expense that must be recognized 
directly in equity are considered financing rather than operating 
cash flow activities.

Derivative financial instruments
As part of managing our exposure to changes in foreign currency 
exchange rates, we periodically utilize foreign exchange forward 
contracts. The objective of these contracts is to minimize impacts 
to cash flows and profitability due to changes in foreign currency 
exchange rates on accounts receivable, accounts payable and 
forecasted cash transactions. These contracts are recorded in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value, which is based upon 
an income approach consisting of a discounted cash flow model 
that takes into account the present value of the future cash flows 
under the terms of the contracts using current market information 
as of the reporting date, such as foreign currency spot and forward 
rates.

We formally document our hedging relationships, including 
identifying the hedging instruments and the hedged items, as well 
as our risk management objectives and strategies for undertaking 
the hedge transaction. We also formally assess, both at inception 
and at least quarterly thereafter, whether the derivatives that are 
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting 
changes in the cash flows of the hedged item. The effective 
portion of the change in fair value of a derivative is recorded as 
a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in 
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the Consolidated Balance Sheets. When the hedged item affects 
the income statement, the gain or loss included in accumulated 
other comprehensive income is reported on the same line in the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations as the hedged item. 
In addition, any ineffective portion of the changes in the fair 
value of derivatives used as cash flow hedges is reported in the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations as the changes occur. If 
it is determined that a derivative ceases to be a highly effective 
hedge, or it is probable that the forecasted transaction will not 
occur, we discontinue hedge accounting and any unrealized gains 
or losses are recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

We provide 1) qualitative disclosures regarding the objectives 
and strategies for using derivative instruments and engaging 
in hedging activities in the context of our overall risk exposure; 
2) quantitative disclosure in tabular format of the fair values of 
derivative instruments and their gains and losses and 3) disclosures 
about credit-risk related contingent features in derivative 
instruments.

accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), which is 
included as a component of stockholders’ equity net of tax, 
includes unrealized gains or losses on derivative instruments, 
postretirement benefit adjustments and currency translation 
adjustments in foreign consolidated subsidiaries.

new accounting standards
From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by 
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the FASB), which are 
adopted by us as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise 
discussed, management believes that the impact of recently issued 
standards, which are not yet effective, will not have a material 
impact on our consolidated statements upon adoption.

In January 2010, the FASB issued updated guidance to amend 
the disclosure requirements related to recurring and nonrecurring 
fair value measurements. This update requires new disclosures 
about significant transfers of assets and liabilities between Level 
1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy (including the reasons for 
these transfers) and the reasons for any transfers in or out of Level 
3. This update also requires a reconciliation of recurring Level 3 
measurements about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements 
on a gross basis. In addition to these new disclosure requirements, 
this update clarifies certain existing disclosure requirements. 
For example, this update clarifies that reporting entities are 
required to provide fair value measurement disclosures for each 
class of assets and liabilities, rather than each major category 
of assets or liabilities. This update also clarifies the requirement 
for entities to disclose information about both the valuation 
techniques and inputs used in estimating Level 2 and Level 3 fair 
value measurements. This update became effective for us with the 
interim and annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 
2009, our fiscal year 2011, except for the requirement to provide 
the Level 3 activity of purchases, sales, issuances and settlements 
on a gross basis, which became effective for us with the interim 
and annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 2010, 
our fiscal year 2012. We were not required to provide the amended 
disclosures for any previous periods presented for comparative 
purposes. Other than requiring additional disclosures, adoption 

of this update has not had a material impact on our consolidated 
financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued accounting guidance related to fair 
value measurement, which amends current guidance to achieve 
common fair value measurement and disclosure requirements 
in U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards. 
This guidance generally represents clarification of fair value 
measurement standards, but also includes instances where 
a particular principle or requirement for measuring fair value 
of disclosing information about fair value measurements has 
changed. This guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim 
periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011. 
We will adopt this guidance for our fiscal year beginning October 
1, 2012. We do not expect this pronouncement to have a material 
effect on our consolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued new accounting guidance on the 
presentation of comprehensive income in financial statements. 
Entities are required to present total comprehensive income either 
in a single, continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two 
separate, but consecutive, statements. Under the single-statement 
approach, entities must include the components of net income, 
a total for net income, the components of other comprehensive 
income and a total for comprehensive income. Under the two-
statement approach, entities must report an income statement 
and, immediately following, a statement of other comprehensive 
income. Under either method, entities must display adjustments 
for items reclassified from other comprehensive income to net 
income in both net income and other comprehensive income. 
The provisions for this guidance are effective for fiscal years, and 
interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 
2011, with early adoption permitted. We will adopt this guidance 
for our fiscal year beginning October 1, 2012.

In September 2011, the FASB issued new accounting guidance 
which simplifies how an entity is required to test goodwill for 
impairment. Under this guidance, an entity would be allowed to 
first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary 
to perform the two-step quantitative goodwill impairment test. 
An entity would not be required to calculate the fair value of a 
reporting unit unless the entity determines, based on a qualitative 
assessment, that it is more likely than not that its fair value is less 
than its carrying amount. This new guidance includes a number of 
factors to consider in conducting the qualitative assessment. This 
guidance is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment 
tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2011, our Fiscal 2013. Early adoption is permitted; however, we will 
not adopt this guidance until October 1, 2012. This guidance is 
not expected to have a material impact on our reported results of 
operations or financial position.

In July 2012, the FASB issued an accounting standards update 
regarding the testing of indefinite-lived intangible assets for 
impairment. Under this update, an entity has the option to first 
assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of 
events and circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not that 
the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired. If, after assessing 
the events and circumstances, an entity concludes that it is more 
likely than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired, 
then the entity is not required to take further action. However, if 
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any entity concludes otherwise, it is required to determine the 
fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset and perform the 
quantitative impairment testing by comparing the fair value with 
the carrying amount. An entity also has the option to bypass the 
qualitative assessment for any indefinite-lived intangible asset in 
any period and proceed directly to performing the quantitative 
test. An entity will be able to resume performing the qualitative 
assessment in any subsequent period. This update is effective 
for annual and interim tests performed for fiscal years beginning 
after September 15, 2012, our fiscal year 2013. Early adoption is 
permitted; however, we will not adopt this guidance until October 
1, 2012. This guidance is not expected to have a material impact 
on our reported results of operations or financial position.

In August 2012, the SEC adopted a rule mandated by the Dodd-
Frank Act to require companies to publicly disclose their use of 
conflict minerals that originated in the Democratic Republic of the 
Congo or an adjoining country. The final rule applies to a company 
that uses minerals including tantalum, tin, gold or tungsten. The final 
rule requires companies to provide disclosure on a new form filed 
with the SEC, with the first specialized disclosure report due on May 
31, 2014, for the 2013 calendar year, and annually on May 31 each 
year thereafter. We are currently evaluating the impact of adoption.

subsequent events
We evaluated subsequent events through the time of filing this 
Annual Report on Form 10-K. No significant events occurred 
subsequent to the balance sheet or prior to the filing of this report 
that would have a material impact on our consolidated financial 
statements or results of operations.

c.  faiR value MeasuReMents
We measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value. 
Fair value is defined as an “exit price” which represents the 
amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
as of the measurement date. As such, fair value is a market-based 
measurement that should be determined based on assumptions 
that market participants would use in valuing an asset or liability. 
The accounting guidance requires the use of valuation techniques 
to measure fair value that maximize the use of observable inputs 
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. As a basis for 
considering such assumptions and inputs, a fair value hierarchy 
has been established which identifies and prioritizes three levels 
of inputs to be used in measuring fair value.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 

Level 1 — Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) 
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets 
that are observable either directly or indirectly, including: quoted 
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted 
prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets 
that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be 
corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no 
market data and require the reporting entity to develop its own 
assumptions.

The following table summarizes the fair value of our assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as 
of September 30, 2012 (in thousands):

fair value Measurements at september 30, 2012

quoted prices in active  
Markets for identical assets

significant other  
 observable inputs

significant  
unobservable inputs

fair value at  
september 30, 2012

(level 1) (level 2) (level 3)

assets

Cash equivalents  $ 45,888  $ —  $ —  $ 45,888

Total  $ 45,888  $ —  $ —  $ 45,888

liabilities     

Foreign currency forward contracts $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —

Total  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —

The following table summarizes the fair value of our assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as 
of September 30, 2011 (in thousands):

fair value Measurements at september 30, 2011

quoted prices in active  
Markets for identical assets

significant other  
 observable inputs

significant  
unobservable inputs

fair value at  
september 30, 2011

(level 1) (level 2) (level 3)

assets

Cash equivalents  $ 65,792  $ —  $ —  $ 65,792

Total  $ 65,792  $ —  $ —  $ 65,792

liabilities     

Foreign currency forward contracts $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —

Total  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —
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Cash equivalents, primarily funds held in money market savings 
instruments, are reported at their current carrying value which 
approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these 
instruments and are included in cash and cash equivalents in our 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Foreign currency forward contracts are valued using an income 
approach which consists of a discounted cash flow model that 
takes into account the present value of future cash flows under the 
terms of the contracts using observable market spot and forward 
rates as of our reporting date, and are included in Level 2 inputs in 
the above tables. We use these derivative instruments to mitigate 
non-functional currency transaction exposure on certain contracts 
with customers and vendors. We mitigate derivative credit risk by 
transacting with highly rated counterparties. We have evaluated 
the credit and non-performance risks associated with our derivative 
counterparties and believe them to be insignificant at September 
30, 2012. All contracts are recorded at fair value and marked-to-
market at the end of each reporting period, with unrealized gains 
and losses being included in accumulated other comprehensive 
income on the Consolidated Balance Sheets for that period. At 
September 30, 2012, all foreign currency forward contracts have 
been settled, with no balances recorded on our consolidated 
balance sheets related to these transactions.

D.  intangiBle assets
Our intangible assets consist of (1) goodwill, which is not being 
amortized, and (2) customer relationships (15 years), trademarks 

(15 years), trade names (10 years), non-compete agreements (5 
years), a supply agreement (15 years) and purchased technologies 
(6 to 7 years) which are amortized over their estimated useful lives. 
We test for impairment of goodwill annually, or immediately if 
conditions indicate that impairment could exist. 

During the year ended September 30, 2010, we acquired intangible 
assets and recorded goodwill in connection with our acquisition 
of Powell Canada and our acquisition of a 50% interest in the 
operations of a joint venture in Kazakhstan. During fiscal year 2010, 
our impairment analyses for goodwill indicated that an impairment 
was required. A loss on impairment of $7.5 million was recorded 
in fiscal year 2010 related to the Powell Canada acquisition. Our 
strategic decision to exit the 50% owned joint venture in Kazakhstan 
and delays in the anticipated growth in capital investments in the 
Oil Sands Region of western Canada, relative to our expectations, 
resulted in the impairment charge. No impairment was identified 
as a result of performing our annual impairment test of goodwill 
for fiscal years 2012 or 2011.

During fiscal year 2011, our impairment analysis indicated that the 
non-compete agreements, trade name and customer relationships 
intangible assets related to the Powell Canada acquisition were 
impaired due to continued operating losses at Powell Canada, which 
have reduced our projections for future revenues and cash flows. 
Accordingly, we recognized a loss on impairment of $7.2 million.

Intangible assets balances, subject to amortization, at September 30, 2012, and September 30, 2011, consisted of the following  
(in thousands):

september 30, 2012 september 30, 2011

gross carrying 
value

accumulated 
amortization 

net carrying 
value

gross carrying 
value

accumulated 
amortization 

net carrying 
value

Supply agreement  $ 17,580  $ (7,225) $ 10,355  $ 17,580  $ (6,052) $ 11,528

Purchased technology 11,818 (9,121) 2,697 11,747 (7,759) 3,988

Non-compete agreements 4,170 (4,170) — 4,170 (4,170) —

Trade name 1,136 (871) 265 1,098 (767) 331

Total  $ 34,704  $ (21,387) $ 13,317  $ 34,595  $ (18,748) $ 15,847

All goodwill and intangible assets disclosed above are reported in 
our Electrical Power Products business segment.

Amortization of intangible assets recorded for the years ended 
September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, was $2.6 million, $4.8 million 
and $4.5 million, respectively. 

Estimated amortization expense for each of the five subsequent 
fiscal years is expected to be (in thousands):

year ending september 30, total

2013  $ 1,673

2014 1,673

2015 1,649

2016 1,576

2017 1,576
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e.  eaRnings peR sHaRe
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (in thousands, except per share data):

year ended september 30, 2012 2011 2010

numerator:    

Net income (loss) attributable to Powell Industries, Inc.  $ 29,657  $ (2,715) $ 25,008

Denominator:    

Weighted average basic shares 11,850 11,735 11,545

Dilutive effect of stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units (1) 75 — 148

Weighted average diluted shares with assumed conversions 11,925 11,735 11,693

net earnings (loss) per share:    

Basic  $ 2.50  $ (0.23) $ 2.17

Diluted  $ 2.49  $ (0.23) $ 2.14

(1) In fiscal year 2011, these items were excluded from diluted income (loss) per share as the effect would have been anti-dilutive.

Approximately 23,000 shares related to outstanding stock options and restricted stock units were excluded from the computation of 
diluted earnings (loss) per share because they were antidilutive at September 30, 2011. All options were included in the computation of 
diluted earnings per share for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2010, respectively, as the options’ exercise prices were less than 
the average market price of our common stock.

f.  Detail of selecteD Balance sHeet accounts

allowance for Doubtful accounts
Activity in our allowance for doubtful accounts receivable consisted 
of the following (in thousands):

september 30, 2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year  $ 391  $ 907

Increase (decrease) to bad debt expense 842 (114)

Deductions for uncollectible accounts 
written off, net of recoveries 142 (394)

Increase (decrease) due to foreign 
currency translation 24 (8)

Balance at end of year  $ 1,399  $ 391

Warranty accrual
Activity in our product warranty accrual consisted of the following 
(in thousands):

september 30, 2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year  $ 4,603  $ 5,929

Increase to warranty expense 3,624 788

Deductions for warranty charges (2,323) (2,432)

Increase (decrease) due to foreign 
currency translation (190) 318

Balance at end of year  $ 5,714  $ 4,603

In addition to our standard estimated warranty accrual, during 
fiscal year 2012, we recorded an additional $1.0 million of 
warranty expense related to the estimated costs to replace certain 
component parts which may be defective.

inventories
The components of inventories are summarized below (in 
thousands): 

september 30, 2012 2011

Raw materials, parts and 
subassemblies  $ 33,632  $ 38,400

Work-in-progress 6,422 5,892

Provision for excess and obsolete 
inventory (7,137) (7,652)

Total inventories  $ 32,917  $ 36,640

cost and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts
The components of costs and estimated earnings and related 
amounts billed on uncompleted contracts are summarized below 
(in thousands):

september 30, 2012 2011

Costs incurred on uncompleted 
contracts  $ 635,714  $ 475,525

Estimated earnings 168,480 131,367

804,194 606,892

Less: Billings to date 754,604 599,847

Net underbilled position  $ 49,590  $ 7,045

Included in the accompanying balance sheets under the following 
captions: 

Costs and estimated earnings in 
excess of billings on uncompleted 
contracts – underbilled  $ 86,734  $ 51,568

Billings in excess of costs and 
estimated earnings on uncompleted 
contracts – overbilled (37,144) (44,523)

Net underbilled position  $ 49,590  $ 7,045
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property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are summarized below  
(in thousands): 

september 30, 2012 2011
Range of asset 

lives

Land  $ 24,766  $ 7,640  —

Buildings and 
improvements 55,431 54,321  3 - 39 Years

Machinery and 
equipment 67,007 62,456  3 - 15 Years

Furniture and fixtures 2,940 3,203  3 - 10 Years

Construction in 
process 7,224 2,625

 
 —

157,368 130,245

Less: Accumulated 
depreciation (78,716) (70,608)

Total property, plant 
and equipment, net $ 78,652  $ 59,637

The increases in land and construction in process are primarily the 
result of construction of facilities in Houston, Texas, and Acheson, 
Alberta, Canada.

Included in property and equipment are assets under capital 
lease of $1.8 million and $2.9 million at September 30, 2012 and 
2011, with related accumulated depreciation of $1.0 million and 
$1.4 million, respectively. Depreciation expense, including the 
depreciation of capital leases, was $10.5 million, $10.6 million and 
$9.2 million for fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

g.  long-teRM DeBt
Long-term debt consisted of the following (in thousands): 

september 30, 2012 2011

Industrial development revenue bonds  $ 4,000  $ 4,400

Capital lease obligations 355 1,041

Subtotal long-term debt and capital lease 
obligations 4,355 5,441

Less current portion (725) (1,140)

Total long-term debt and capital lease 
obligations  $ 3,630  $ 4,301

The annual maturities of long-term debt as of September 30, 2012, 
were as follows (in thousands):

year ending september 30,
long-term  

Debt Maturities

2013  $ 725

2014 428

2015 402

2016 400

2017 400

Thereafter 2,000

Total long-term debt maturities  $ 4,355

us Revolver
In March 2012, we amended our existing credit agreement 
(Amended Credit Agreement) with a major domestic bank. This 
amendment to our credit facility was made to increase the dollar 
limit on capital expenditures to allow us to support our continued 
expansions, including the Canadian Oil Sands and offshore 
production markets. The Amended Credit Agreement provides for 
a $75.0 million revolving credit facility (US Revolver). Obligations 
are collateralized by the stock of certain of our subsidiaries.

The interest rate for amounts outstanding under the Amended 
Credit Agreement for the US Revolver is a floating rate based upon 
the higher of the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5%, or the bank’s prime 
rate. Once the applicable rate is determined, a margin ranging 
up to 1.75%, as determined by our consolidated leverage ratio, is 
added to the applicable rate. 

The US Revolver provides for the issuance of letters of credit which 
reduce the amounts which may be borrowed under the revolver. 
The amount available under the US Revolver was reduced by $36.5 
million for our outstanding letters of credit at September 30, 2012. 

There were no borrowings under the US Revolver as of September 
30, 2012. Amounts available under the US Revolver were $38.5 
million at September 30, 2012. The US Revolver expires on 
December 31, 2016.

The Amended Credit Agreement contains certain restrictive and 
maintenance-type covenants, including restrictions on our ability 
to pay dividends, as well as restriction on the amount of capital 
expenditures allowed. It also contains financial covenants defining 
various financial measures and the levels of these measures with 
which we must comply, as well as a “material adverse change” 
clause. A “material adverse change” is defined as a material 
change in our operations, business, properties, liabilities or 
condition (financial or otherwise) or a material impairment of our 
ability to perform our obligations under our credit agreements.

The Amended Credit Agreement’s principal financial covenants 
include: 

Minimum Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio — The Amended Credit 
Agreement requires that the consolidated fixed charge coverage 
ratio be greater than 1.25 to 1.00. The consolidated fixed charge 
calculation is income before interest and income taxes, increased 
by depreciation and amortization expense (EBITDA) and reduced 
by income taxes and capital expenditures for the previous 12 
months, divided by the sum of payments on long-term debt, 
excluding the US Revolver and interest expense, during the 
previous 12 months.

Maximum Leverage Ratio — The Amended Credit Agreement 
requires that the ratio be less than 2.75 to 1.00. The maximum 
leverage ratio is the sum of total long-term debt and outstanding 
letters of credit, less industrial development revenue bonds, 
divided by the EBITDA for the previous 12 months.

The Amended Credit Agreement is collateralized by a pledge of 
100% of the voting capital stock of each of our domestic subsidiaries 
and 66% of the voting capital stock of each non-domestic subsidiary, 
excluding Powell Canada. The Amended Credit Agreement 
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provides for customary events of default and carries cross-default 
provisions with other existing debt agreements. If an event of 
default (as defined in the Amended Credit Agreement) occurs and 
is continuing, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth 
in the Amended Credit Agreement, amounts outstanding under 
the Amended Credit Agreement may be accelerated and may 
become immediately due and payable. As of September 30, 2012, 
we were in compliance with all of the financial covenants of the 
Amended Credit Agreement.

canadian Revolver 
On December 15, 2009, we entered into a credit agreement with 
a major international bank (the Canadian Facility) to finance the 
acquisition of Powell Canada and provide additional working 
capital support for our operations in Canada. In March 2012, 
we reduced the Canadian Facility from a $20.0 million CAD 
(approximately $20.3 million) revolving credit facility (the Canadian 
Revolver) to $10.0 million CAD (approximately $10.2 million), and 
eliminated the restrictions on amounts which may be borrowed 
based on a borrowing base calculation. 

The Canadian Revolver provides for the issuance of letters of 
credit which reduce the amounts which may be borrowed under 
the Canadian Revolver. The amount available under the Canadian 
Revolver was reduced by $0.1 million for an outstanding letter of 
credit at September 30, 2012.

There were no borrowings outstanding under the Canadian 
Revolver, and $10.0 million was available at September 30, 2012. 
The Canadian Facility expires on February 28, 2015. The interest 
rate for amounts outstanding under the Canadian Revolver is 
a floating interest rate based upon either the Canadian Prime 
Rate, or the lender’s US Bank Rate. Once the applicable rate is 
determined, a margin of 0.375% to 1.125%, as determined by our 
consolidated leverage ratio, is added to the applicable rate.

The principal financial covenants are consistent with those 
described in our Amended Credit Agreement. The Canadian 
Facility contains a “material adverse effect” clause. A “material 
adverse effect” is defined as a material change in the operations 
of Powell or Powell Canada in relation to our financial condition, 
property, business operations, expected net cash flows, liabilities 
or capitalization.

The Canadian Facility is secured by the assets of our Canadian 
operations and provides for customary events of default and carries 
cross-default provisions with our existing debt agreements. If an 
event of default (as defined in the Canadian Facility) occurs and is 
continuing, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in 
the Canadian Facility, amounts outstanding under the Canadian 
Facility may be accelerated and may become immediately due 
and payable. As of September 30, 2012, we were in compliance 
with all of the financial covenants of the Canadian Facility.

industrial Development Revenue Bonds
We borrowed $8.0 million in October 2001 through a loan 
agreement funded with proceeds from tax-exempt industrial 
development revenue bonds (Bonds). These Bonds were issued by 
the Illinois Development Finance Authority and were used for the 
completion of our Northlake, Illinois, facility. Pursuant to the Bond 
issuance, a reimbursement agreement between us and a major 
domestic bank required an issuance by the bank of an irrevocable 
direct-pay letter of credit (Bond LC), as collateral, to the Bonds’ 
trustee to guarantee payment of the Bonds’ principal and interest 
when due. The Bond LC is subject to both early termination and 
extension provisions customary to such agreements, as well as 
various covenants, for which we were in compliance at September 
30, 2012. While the Bonds mature in 2021, the reimbursement 
agreement requires annual redemptions of $400,000 that 
commenced on October 25, 2002. A sinking fund is used for the 
redemption of the Bonds. At September 30, 2012, the balance in 
the restricted sinking fund was approximately $434,000 and was 
recorded in cash and cash equivalents. The Bonds bear interest 
at a floating rate determined weekly by the Bonds’ remarketing 
agent, which was the underwriter for the Bonds and is an affiliate 
of the bank. This interest rate was 0.45% per year on September 
30, 2012.

H.  incoMe taxes
The components of the income tax provision were as follows  
(in thousands): 

year ended september 30, 2012 2011 2010

Current:    

Federal  $ 18,156  $ 5,470  $ 18,126

State 1,512 939 1,750

Foreign 331 563 1,071

19,999 6,972 20,947

Deferred:

Federal (1,840) (122) (1,189)

State 25 (76) 23

Foreign 393 (62) 113

(1,422) (260) (1,053)

Total income tax provision  $ 18,577  $ 6,712  $ 19,894

Income before income taxes and minority interest was as follows  
(in thousands):

year ended september 30, 2012 2011 2010

U.S.  $ 53,885  $ 19,850  $ 53,467

Other than U.S. (5,651) (15,853) (8,406)

Income from continuing 
operations before 
provision for income taxes $ 48,234  $ 3,997  $ 45,061
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A reconciliation of the statutory U.S. income tax rate and the 
effective income tax rate, as computed on earnings before 
income tax provision in each of the three years presented in the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations, was as follows:

year ended september 30, 2012 2011 2010

Statutory rate 35% 35% 35%

State income taxes,  
net of federal benefit 2 14 3

International withholding tax (1) (9) —

Other permanent tax items — 5 —

Foreign rate differential 1 33 1

Domestic production  
activities deduction (3) (16) (2)

Foreign valuation allowance  
and other 4 106 7

Effective rate 38% 168% 44%

Our provision for income taxes reflects an effective tax rate on 
earnings before income taxes of 38% in fiscal year 2012 compared 
to 168% and 44% in fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. The 
increase in the effective tax rate for fiscal year 2011 resulted from a 
valuation allowance against deferred tax assets in Canada.

We have not recorded deferred income taxes on $16 million of 
undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries because of 
management’s intent to indefinitely reinvest such earnings. Upon 
distribution of these earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise, 
we may be subject to U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding 
taxes. It is not practical, however, to estimate the amount of taxes 
that may be payable on the eventual remittance of these earnings.

We are subject to income tax in the U.S., multiple state jurisdictions 
and a few international jurisdictions, primarily the U.K. and in Canada 
since December 15, 2009. For U.S. Federal income tax purposes, all 
years prior to 2009 are closed. We do not consider any state in which 
we do business to be a major tax jurisdiction. We remain open to 
examination in the U.K. for tax years 2008 to the present.

The net deferred income tax asset (liability) was comprised of the 
following (in thousands):

september 30, 2012 2011

Current deferred income taxes:   

Gross assets  $ 7,053  $ 6,801

Gross liabilities (2,455) (3,221)

Net current deferred income tax asset 4,598 3,580

Noncurrent deferred income taxes:   

Gross assets 2,422 2,133

Gross liabilities — (114)

Net noncurrent deferred income tax 
asset 2,422 2,019

Net deferred income tax asset  $ 7,020  $ 5,599

At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the noncurrent deferred income 
tax asset was included in other assets on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets.

The tax effect of temporary differences between U.S. GAAP 
accounting and federal income tax accounting creating deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities were as follows (in thousands):

september 30, 2012 2011

Deferred Tax Assets:

  Allowance for doubtful accounts  $ 367  $ 89

  Workers compensation 360 39

  Stock-based compensation 729 354

  Reserve for accrued employee 
benefits 1,546 1,579

  Warranty accrual 1,336 935

  Depreciation and amortization 1,366 956

  Deferred compensation 1,013 1,343

  Postretirement benefits liability 373 460

  Accrued legal 114 182

  Uniform capitalization and inventory 3,683 4,667

  Goodwill impairment 1,285 1,360

  Other 14 41

  Net operating loss 4,787 3,144

  Gross deferred tax asset 16,973 15,149

  Less: valuation allowance 7,498 6,215

  Deferred tax assets 9,475 8,934

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

  Uncompleted contracts (2,455) (3,221)

  Other — (5)

  Capital lease — (109)

  Deferred tax liabilities (2,455) (3,335)

   Net deferred tax asset  $ 7,020  $ 5,599

At September 30, 2012, we had $19.1 million of gross foreign 
operating loss carryforwards, which are subject to a 20-year 
carryforward period. As of September 30, 2012, we have recorded 
a net valuation allowance of $7.5 million against our Canadian 
deferred tax assets, which we expect cannot be realized through 
future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and 
future taxable income. We believe that our deferred tax assets in 
other tax jurisdictions are more likely than not realizable through 
future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and our 
estimate of future taxable income. 
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We previously adopted accounting guidance on the accounting for 
uncertainty in income taxes. Upon adoption of the guidance, we 
recorded a $0.3 million increase in our tax reserves, an offsetting 
decrease of $0.2 million to retained earnings for uncertain tax 
positions and an increase in deferred income tax assets of $0.1 
million. As of the adoption date, we had total tax reserves of $1.2 
million. This reserve includes an estimate of potential interest 
and penalties on estimated liabilities for uncertain tax positions, 
which were recorded as components of income tax expense, in 
the amount of $160,000 as of September 30, 2012. A reconciliation 
of the beginning and ending amount of the unrecognized tax 
liabilities follows (in thousands):

Balance as of September 30, 2011  $ 763

Increases related to tax positions taken during  
a prior period 43

Decreases related to settlements with taxing 
authorities (32)

Decreases related to expirations of statute of 
limitations (263)

Balance as of September 30, 2012  $ 511

Our continuing policy is to recognize interest and penalties related 
to income tax matters as tax expense. The amount of interest and 
penalty expense recorded for the year ended September 30, 2012, 
was not material.

There was no material change in the net amount of unrecognized 
tax benefits in the year ended September 30, 2012. Management 
believes that it is reasonably possible that within the next 12 
months, the total unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by 
approximately 39% due to the expiration of certain statutes of 
limitations in various state and local jurisdictions.

Management believes that an adequate provision has been 
made for any adjustments that may result from tax examinations. 
However, the outcome of tax audits cannot be predicted with 
certainty. If any issues addressed in our tax audits are resolved 
in a manner not consistent with management’s expectations, we 
could be required to adjust our provision for income tax in the 
period such resolution occurs. Although timing of the resolution 
and/or closure of audits is highly uncertain, we do not believe it 
is reasonably possible that our unrecognized tax benefits would 
materially change in the next 12 months.

i.  DeRivative instRuMents anD HeDging stRategies
We operate in various countries and have operations in the United 
Kingdom and Canada. These international operations expose 
us to market risk associated with foreign currency exchange rate 
fluctuations. We have entered into certain forward contracts to 
hedge the risk of certain foreign currency rate fluctuations. To the 
extent we choose to manage volatility associated with the net 
exposures, we enter into various financial transactions which we 
account for using the applicable accounting guidance for derivative 
instruments and hedging activities. Our objective is to hedge the 
variability in forecasted cash flow due to the foreign currency risk 
associated with certain long-term sales. As of September 30, 2012, 
we held no derivatives.

In order for a derivative to qualify for hedge accounting, the 
derivative must be formally designated as a hedge by documenting 
the relationship between the derivative and the hedged item. The 
documentation includes a description of the hedging instrument, 
the hedge item, the risk being hedged, our risk management 
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the method 
for assessing the effectiveness of the hedge and the method 
for measuring hedge ineffectiveness. Additionally, the hedge 
relationship must be expected to be highly effective at offsetting 
changes in either the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item at 
both inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis. We assess 
the ongoing effectiveness of our hedges in accordance with the 
Cumulative Dollar-Offset Approach, and measure and record 
hedge ineffectiveness at the end of each fiscal quarter, as necessary.

All derivatives are recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets 
at their fair value and classified based on the instrument’s maturity 
date. There were no outstanding derivatives as of September 30, 
2011, and September 30, 2012.

J.  eMployee Benefit plans

401(k) plan
We have a defined employee contribution 401(k) plan for substantially 
all of our U.S. employees. We match 100% of employee contributions 
up to an employee contribution of 4% of each employee’s salary. We 
recognized expenses of $4.6 million, $3.4 million and $2.9 million 
in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, under this plan 
primarily related to matching contributions.

Deferred compensation
We offer an unfunded, non-qualified deferred compensation 
plan to a select group of management and highly compensated 
individuals. The plan permits the deferral of up to 50% of a 
participant’s base salary and/or 100% of a participant’s annual 
incentive bonus. The deferrals are held in a separate trust, which has 
been established to administer the plan. The assets of the trust are 
subject to the claims of our creditors in the event that we become 
insolvent. Consequently, the trust qualifies as a grantor trust for 
income tax purposes (a Rabbi Trust). The assets and liabilities of 
the plan are recorded in other assets and deferred compensation 
in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, respectively. 
Changes in the deferred compensation balance are charged to 
compensation expense. The plan is not qualified under Section 
401 of the Internal Revenue code. There was no compensation 
expense related to this plan in fiscal year 2012. Total assets held by 
the trustee and deferred compensation liabilities were $2.1 million 
at September 30, 2012.

Certain executives were provided an executive benefit plan which 
provides for fixed payments upon normal retirement on or after age 
65 and the completion of at least 10 years of continuous employment. 
The estimated present value of these payments were accrued over 
the service life of these individuals, and $0.8 million is recorded 
in deferred compensation in the accompanying Consolidated 
Balance Sheets related to this executive benefit plan. To assist in 
funding the deferred compensation liability, we have invested in 
corporate-owned life insurance policies. The cash surrender value 
of these policies is presented in other assets in the accompanying 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets. The cash surrender value of life 
insurance policies was $4.1 million at September 30, 2012.

Retiree Medical plan
We have a plan to extend to retirees health benefits which are 
available to active employees under our existing health plans. This 
plan is unfunded. The plan provides coverage for employees with 
at least 10 years of service and who are age 55 or older but less than 
65. The retiree is required to pay the COBRA rate less a subsidy 
provided by us based on years of service at the time of retirement.

For the year ended September 30, 2012, the measurement of 
postretirement benefit expense was based on assumptions used 
to value the postretirement benefit liability as of September 30, 
2012, our measurement date.

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income 
as of September 30, 2012 and 2011, consisted of the following on a 
pretax basis (in thousands):

september 30, 2012 2011

Net actuarial gain  $ (909) $ (827)

Prior service cost — 51

Total recognized in accumulated  
other comprehensive income  $ (909) $ (776)

Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income as of 
September 30, 2012, expected to be recognized as components 
of net periodic postretirement benefit cost in 2013 were as follows 
(in thousands):

Net actuarial gain  $ (67)

Prior service cost —

Total  $ (67)

The following table illustrates the changes in accumulated 
postretirement benefit obligation, changes in fair value of assets and 
the funded status of the postretirement benefit plan (in thousands):

september 30, 2012 2011

Changes in postretirement benefit obligation:

Balance at beginning of year  $ 895  $ 663

Service cost 23 40

Interest cost 17 39

Actuarial loss (gain) (189) 248

Benefits paid (57) (95)

Balance at end of year  $ 689  $ 895

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of assets at  
beginning of year  $ —  $ —

Employer contributions 57 95

Benefits paid (57) (95)

Fair value of assets at end of year  $ —  $ —

Reconciliation of funded status:   

Unfunded liability  $ (689) $ (895)

Unrecognized prior service cost — 51

Unrecognized net actuarial gain (909) (827)

Net liability recognized  $ (1,598) $ (1,671)

 2012 2011

Weighted-average assumptions used  
to determine benefit obligations at  
September 30:

Discount rate pre-retirement 0.00% 0.00%

Discount rate post-retirement 3.08 4.24

Current year trend rate 8.40 10.00

Ultimate trend rate 5.00 5.00

Year ultimate trend rate reached 2023 2014

If the medical care cost trend rate assumptions were increased 
or decreased by 1% as of September 30, 2012, the effect of this 
change on the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and 
service and interest costs would be an increase of $102,000 and 
$5,000 or a decrease of $53,000 and $3,000, respectively.

year ended september 30, 2012 2011 2010

Components of net periodic 
postretirement benefit cost:

Service cost  $ 23  $ 40  $ 33

Interest cost 17 39 39

Prior service cost 51 115 115

Net gain recognized (107) (37) (49)

Net periodic postretirement 
benefit cost  $ (16) $ 157  $ 138

2012 2011

Weighted-average assumptions used to 
determine benefit costs at September 30:

Discount rate pre-retirement 0.00% 0.00%

Discount rate post-retirement 4.24 4.56

Current year trend rate 9.00 10.00

Ultimate trend rate 5.00 5.00

Year ultimate trend rate reached 2015 2013

Future expected benefit payments as of September 30, 2012, 
related to postretirement benefits for the subsequent five years 
were as follows (in thousands):

year ending september 30,
expected  

Benefit payments

2013  $ 61

2014 44

2015 47

2016 46

2017 54

2018 through 2022 283
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k.  coMMitMents anD contingencies

long-term Debt
See Note G herein for discussion of our long-term debt.

leases
We lease certain offices, facilities and equipment under operating 
leases expiring at various dates through 2023. At September 
30, 2012, the minimum annual rental commitments under leases 
having terms in excess of one year were as follows (in thousands):

years ending september 30, operating leases

2013  $ 5,597

2014 4,575

2015 3,533

2016 2,910

2017 2,274

Thereafter 7,725

Total lease commitments  $ 26,614

Lease expense for all operating leases was $5.4 million, $3.7 million 
and $3.3 million for fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

letters of credit and Bonds
Certain customers require us to post bank letter of credit guarantees 
or performance bonds issued by a surety. These guarantees and 
performance bonds assure that we will perform under the terms of 
our contract. In the event of default, the counterparty may demand 
payment from the bank under a letter of credit or performance by 
the surety under a performance bond. To date, there have been 
no significant expenses related to either for the periods reported. 
We were contingently liable for secured and unsecured letters 
of credit of $36.6 million as of September 30, 2012. We also had 
performance and maintenance bonds totaling $249.1 million that 
were outstanding, with additional bonding capacity of $150.9 
million available, at September 30, 2012.

We have a facility agreement (Facility Agreement) between S&I 
and a large international bank. The $12.1 million facility agreement 
provides S&I the ability to enter into forward exchange contracts, 
currency options and performance bonds. At September 30, 2012, 
we had outstanding a total of $7.0 million of guarantees under this 
Facility Agreement.

The Facility Agreement provides for financial covenants, 
customary events of default and carries cross-default provisions 
with our Amended Credit Facility. If an event of default (as defined 
in the Facility Agreement) occurs and is continuing, on the terms 
and subject to the conditions set forth in the Facility Agreement, 
obligations outstanding under the Facility Agreement may be 
accelerated and may become or be declared immediately due 
and payable.

litigation
We are involved in various legal proceedings, claims and other 
disputes arising in the ordinary course of business which, in general, 
are subject to uncertainties and the outcomes are not predictable. 
Although we can give no assurance about the outcome of pending 
or threatened litigation and the effect such outcomes may have on 
us, management believes that any ultimate liability resulting from 

the outcome of such proceedings, to the extent not otherwise 
provided or covered by insurance, will not have a material adverse 
effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations 
or liquidity.

l.  stock-BaseD coMpensation

We have the following stock-based compensation plans: 

Restricted stock
We have a Restricted Stock Plan for the benefit of members of 
the Board of Directors of the Company (the Board) who, at the 
time of their service, are not employees of the Company or any 
of its affiliates. Subject to certain conditions and restrictions as 
determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board and 
proportionate adjustments in the event of stock dividends, stock 
splits and similar corporate transactions, each eligible director 
will receive 2,000 shares of restricted stock annually. In fiscal 2012, 
16,000 shares of restricted stock were issued to such directors at a 
price of $37.50 per share. In fiscal 2011, 17,500 shares of restricted 
stock were issued to such directors at a price of $33.49 per share. 
The maximum aggregate number of shares of stock that may be 
issued under the Restricted Stock Plan is 150,000 and will consist 
of authorized but unissued or reacquired shares of stock, or any 
combination thereof. The restricted stock grants vest 50% per 
year over a two-year period on each anniversary of the grant date. 
Unless terminated by the Board, the Restricted Stock Plan will 
terminate at the close of business on December 16, 2014, and no 
further grants shall be made under the plan after such date. Awards 
granted before such date shall continue to be subject to the 
terms and conditions of the plan and the respective agreements 
pursuant to which they were granted. The total number of shares 
of common stock available for future awards under the plan was 
32,879 shares as of September 30, 2012.

The 2000 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, as amended, 
previously had been adopted for the benefit of members of the 
Board of Directors of the Company who, at the time of their 
service, were not employees of the Company or any of its affiliates. 
Following the adoption of the Restricted Stock Plan described 
above, the Compensation Committee ceased the use of this plan 
in making new grants to directors. The total number of shares 
of common stock available for future awards under the plan was 
33,117 shares as of September 30, 2012.

The 2006 Equity Compensation Plan (the 2006 Plan) grants any 
employee of the Company and its subsidiaries and consultants, 
the right to participate in the plan and receive awards. Awards can 
take the form of options, stock appreciation rights, stock awards 
and performance unit awards. The maximum aggregate number of 
shares of stock that may be issued under the 2006 Plan is 750,000 
shares. The total number of shares of common stock available 
under the plan was 508,403 shares as of September 30, 2012.

In August 2012, 45,000 shares of restricted stock were issued under 
the 2006 Plan to our new President and Chief Executive Officer. 
These shares were issued at a price of $39.11 per share. The 
restricted stock grant vests 33% per year over a three-year period 
on each anniversary of the grant date.
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In June 2012, 2,000 shares of restricted stock were issued under 
the 2006 Plan to the Chairman of the Board, who was an employee 
of the Company at the time the shares were issued. These shares 
were issued at a price of $37.50 per share. The restricted stock grant 
vests 50% per year over a two-year period on each anniversary of 
the grant date.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2011, 26,000 shares of restricted 
stock were issued to certain officers and key employees of the 
Company with a fair value ranging from $30.79 to $32.12 per share 
under the 2006 Plan. The restricted stock grant vests over a three-
year period on each anniversary of the grant date. Compensation 
expense is recognized over a three-year period based on the price 
per share on the grant date. In conjunction with the separation 
of our former President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) in 
September 2011, the remaining unvested 7,601 shares previously 
issued to him became immediately vested and were expensed in 
selling, general and administrative expenses.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2010, 10,000 shares of restricted 
stock were issued to our former CEO at a price of $37.67 per share 
under the 2006 Plan. The restricted stock grant vests 20% per year 
over a five-year period on each anniversary of the grant date. 
Compensation expense is recognized over the five-year vesting 
period based on the $37.67 price per share on the grant date. In 
conjunction with the separation of our former CEO in September 
2011, the remaining unvested 8,000 shares previously issued to 
him became immediately vested and were expensed in selling, 
general and administrative expenses.

During the year ended September 30, 2012, we recorded 
compensation expense of $0.7 million related to restricted stock 
grants. We recorded compensation expense of $0.8 million and 
$0.8 million related to restricted stock grants for the years ended 
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Restricted stock units
In October 2009 and October 2010, we granted 34,700 and 
34,566 restricted stock units (RSUs), respectively, with a fair value 
of $38.36 and $30.79 per unit, respectively, to certain officers and 
key employees of the Company. An additional 4,482 RSUs were 
granted in October 2010, with a fair value of $32.12. The RSUs vest 
over a three-year period from their date of issuance. The fair value 
of the RSUs was based on the closing price of our common stock as 
reported on the NASDAQ Global Market (NASDAQ) on the grant 
dates. Sixty-percent of the actual amount of the RSUs earned will 
be based on the cumulative earnings as reported relative to the 
three-year performance cycle which began October 1 of the year 
granted, and ranges from 0% to 150% of the target RSUs granted. 
The remaining forty-percent of the RSUs are time-based and vest 
over a three-year period. At September 30, 2012, there were 99,725 
RSUs outstanding. The RSUs do not have voting rights of common 
stock, and the shares of common stock underlying the RSUs are 
not considered issued and outstanding until actually issued.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2012, we granted 32,894 
performance-based RSUs with a fair value of $31.18 per unit to 
certain officers and key employees of the Company. The RSUs 
vest over a three-year period from their date of issuance, and are 
earned over a three-year performance cycle.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2012, we also granted 21,931 time-
based RSUs with a fair value of $31.18 per unit to certain officers 
and key employees of the Company. The RSUs vest over a three-
year period from their date of issuance, and are time-based. 

RSU activity (number of shares) for us was as follows:

number of 
Restricted 

stock units

Weighted  
average  

grant Date  
fair value  
per share

Outstanding at September 30, 2009 94,589  $ 36.04

Granted 34,688 38.36

Expired or cancelled — —

Vested/exercised (41,823) 31.86

Outstanding at September 30, 2010 87,454 38.96

Granted 39,048 30.94

Expired or cancelled — —

Vested/exercised (57,124) 36.94

Outstanding at September 30, 2011 69,378 36.10

Granted 54,825 31.18

Expired or cancelled (24,478) 38.71

Vested/exercised — —

Outstanding at September 30, 2012 99,725  $ 32.69

We recorded compensation expense of $1.5 million and $1.3 
million related to RSUs for the years ended September 30, 2012 
and 2010, respectively. For the year ended September 30, 2011, we 
recorded a credit to compensation expense of $1.4 million related 
to RSUs, as the estimated earnings per share goals were not met 
for the three-year cumulative performance cycle for all RSU awards 
currently outstanding. 

stock options
The 1992 Stock Option Plan, as amended (the 1992 Plan), permits 
us to grant to key employees non-qualified options and stock 
grants, subject to certain conditions and restrictions as determined 
by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors and 
proportionate adjustments in the event of stock dividends, stock 
splits and similar corporate transactions. The maximum number 
of shares that may be issued under the 1992 Plan is 2.7 million 
shares. Stock options are granted at an exercise price equal to the 
fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant. 
Generally, options granted have an expiration date of seven years 
from the grant date and vest in increments of 20% per year over 
a five-year period. Pursuant to the 1992 Plan, option holders 
who exercise their options and hold the underlying shares of 
common stock for five years, vest in a stock grant equal to 20% 
of the original option shares. While restricted until the expiration 
of five years, the stock grant is considered issued at the date of 
the stock option exercise and is included in earnings per share. 
During fiscal years 2012 and 2010, 3,740 shares and 12,380 shares, 
respectively, of restricted stock were issued to option holders 
who met specified requirements under the 1992 Plan. There were 
no restricted stock grants under the 1992 Plan during fiscal year 
2011. There have been no stock options granted since July 2005, 
and all outstanding options under the 1992 Plan were exercised 
or forfeited as of September 30, 2012. There were 466,392 shares 
available to be granted under this plan as of September 30, 2012. 
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M.  Business segMents
We manage our business through operating segments, which are 
comprised of two reportable business segments: Electrical Power 
Products and Process Control Systems. Electrical Power Products 
includes equipment and systems for the distribution and control 
of electrical energy. Process Control Systems consists principally 
of instrumentation, computer controls, communications and data 
management systems to control and manage critical processes.

The table below reflects certain information relating to our 
operations by business segment. All revenues represent sales from 
unaffiliated customers. The accounting policies of the business 
segments are the same as those described in the summary of 
significant accounting policies. Corporate expenses are allocated 
to the operating business segments primarily based on revenues. 
The corporate assets are mainly cash, cash equivalents and 
marketable securities.

Detailed information regarding our business segments is shown 
below (in thousands):

year ended september 30, 2012 2011 2010

Revenues:    

Electrical Power Products  $ 686,581 $ 533,339 $ 517,069

Process Control Systems 30,613 29,058 33,623

Total  $ 717,194 $ 562,397 $ 550,692

gross profit:

Electrical Power Products  $ 132,458 $ 91,730 $ 129,780

Process Control Systems 7,480 8,200 12,277

Total  $ 139,938 $ 99,930 $ 142,057

income before income taxes:

Electrical Power Products  $ 48,055 $ 3,888 $ 41,378

Process Control Systems 179 109 3,683

Total  $ 48,234 $ 3,997 $ 45,061

Depreciation and amortization:

Electrical Power Products  $ 13,010 $ 15,188 $ 13,453

Process Control Systems 55 162 177

Total  $ 13,065 $ 15,350 $ 13,630

Income before income taxes includes a $1.2 million gain recorded 
in the second quarter of fiscal 2011 resulting from cash received 
from the sale of our 50% equity investment in Kazakhstan. This gain 

was recorded in our Electrical Power Products business segment. 
Income before taxes for fiscal 2011 includes an impairment charge 
of $7.2 million, which was recorded in the fourth quarter, to reflect 
the impairment for the value of the intangible assets that were 
recorded in relation to the acquisition of Powell Canada. This loss 
was recorded in our Electrical Power Products business segment.

Income before income taxes for fiscal 2010 includes an impairment 
charge of $7.5 million to reflect the impairment for the value of 
goodwill that was recorded in relation to the acquisition of Powell 
Canada. This loss was recorded in our Electrical Power Products 
business segment.

geographic information
Revenues are as follows (in thousands): 

year ended september 30, 2012 2011 2010

Europe (including former 
Soviet Union)  $ 24,857  $ 7,107  $ 25,174

Far East 14,865 17,172 24,998

Middle East and Africa 79,781 46,304 25,880

North, Central and South 
America (excluding U.S.) 184,935 112,949 81,506

United States 412,756 378,865 393,134

Total revenues  $ 717,194  $ 562,397  $ 550,692

The United States accounted for 58%, 67% and 71% of consolidated 
revenues in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. During 
fiscal years 2012 and 2011, our operations in Canada accounted 
for 13% and 17% of revenues with customers, respectively. During 
fiscal year 2012, one petrochemical project being shipped to 
Colombia accounted for 11% of revenues with customers.

september 30, 2012 2011

long-lived assets:   

United States  $ 60,012  $ 47,966

United Kingdom 6,238 6,409

Canada 12,402 5,262

Total  $ 78,652  $ 59,637

Long-lived assets consist of property, plant and equipment net of 
accumulated depreciation.
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n.  quaRteRly Results of opeRations (unauDiteD)
The table below sets forth the unaudited consolidated operating results by fiscal quarter for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 
2011 (in thousands, except per share data): 

2012 quarters first second third fourth 2012

Revenues  $ 157,456  $ 181,486  $ 194,093  $ 184,159  $ 717,194

Gross profit 20,378 34,237 43,843 41,480 139,938

Net income (loss) (1,745) 7,411 12,138 11,853 29,657

Basic earnings (loss) per share (0.15) 0.63 1.03 0.99 2.50

Diluted earnings (loss) per share (0.15) 0.63 1.02 0.99 2.49

2011 quarters first second third fourth 2011

Revenues  $ 124,674  $ 125,111  $ 141,369  $ 171,243  $ 562,397

Gross profit 25,865 24,877 21,864 27,324 99,930

Net income (loss) 2,432 1,733 73 (6,953) (2,715)

Basic earnings (loss) per share 0.21 0.15 0.01 (0.59) (0.23)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.21 0.15 0.01 (0.59) (0.23)

The sum of the individual earnings per share amounts may not 
agree with year-to-date earnings per share as each period’s 
computation is based on the weighted-average number of shares 
outstanding during the period.

Income before income taxes includes a $1.2 million gain recorded 
in the second quarter of fiscal 2011 resulting from cash received 
from the sale of our 50% equity investment in Kazakhstan. Income 
before taxes for fiscal 2011 includes an impairment charge of 
$7.2 million, which was recorded in the fourth quarter, to reflect 
the impairment for the value of the intangible assets that were 
recorded in relation to the acquisition of Powell Canada.

evaluation of Disclosure controls and procedures
We have established and maintain a system of disclosure 
controls and procedures that are designed to provide reasonable 
assurance that information required to be disclosed in our reports 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) pursuant 
to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange 
Act), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within 
the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC and 
that such information is accumulated and communicated to our 
management, including our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO), as appropriate, to allow timely 
decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management, with the participation of our CEO and CFO, has 
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) 
and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period 
covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, our CEO and 
CFO have each concluded that as of the end of the period, our 
disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide 
reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed 
by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act 
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the 
time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that 
such information is accumulated and communicated to our 
management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate, to 
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management’s Report on internal control  
over financial Reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in 
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control system 
was designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. Due to its inherent limitations, 
internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness 
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management of the Company has assessed the effectiveness 
of our internal control over financial reporting as of September 
30, 2012. Management evaluated the effectiveness of internal 
control over financial reporting based on the criteria in Internal 
Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). 
Based on management’s evaluation, management has concluded 
that internal control over financial reporting was effective at the 
reasonable assurance level as of September 30, 2012, based on 
criteria in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the 
COSO.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public 
accounting firm, has audited and issued their report on the 
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of 
September 30, 2012, which appears in their report to the financial 
statements included herein. 

changes in internal control over financial Reporting
There have been no changes in our internal control over financial 
reporting that occurred during the last fiscal quarter that have 
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our 
internal control over financial reporting.
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RepoRt of inDepenDent RegisteReD puBlic accounting fiRM

to the Board of Directors and stockholders of powell industries, inc.:
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Powell Industries, Inc. and its subsidiaries at September 30, 2012 and 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash 
flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2012 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over 
financial reporting as of September 30, 2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for these 
financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting included in management’s report referred to above. Our responsibility is to express opinions on 
these financial statements and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the 
financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Houston, Texas
December 5, 2012
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